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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below:

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEMBEHME

AREREREMBFENEEREE &
ERFERESHE (BEREE B KR

LM BHRER)EIMT :

RESULTS %5
THE GROUP KrEE
For the year ended 31 December
BZNANBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHEIT FHET FHEIT
Turnover = 201 175,932 155,361 155,823 82518 510,793
Loss for the year FRERE (74,241) (66,805) (18,134) (52,118) (38,834)
Loss attributable to: AT &IERENER:
Owners of the Company RRBHEEA (63,417) (55,275) (24,106) (48,264) (40612)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R (10,824) (11,530) 5972 (3.854) 1,778
(74,241) (66,805) (18,134) (52,118) (38,834)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BBEKFERES
As at 3| December
R128318
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHEIT
Total assets HMEE 710,140 642,789 655,818 457 446 247,123
Total liabilities mafs (268,469) (128,615) (75,875) 213817) (135,765)
Net assets EERE (441,671) 514,174 579,943 238,629 111,358
Attributable to: LT EBEN:
Owners of the Company EAREBA 338,691 398,671 449,706 227,040 109,247
Non-controlling interests FERER 102,980 115,503 130,237 11,589 2,111
441,671 514,174 579,943 238,629 11358

ERMEX L EEEMERAT
—2-hEFR O



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” and the “Directors”) of Beijing Sports
and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
2019 annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Annual
Report”), and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Sports and Entertainment Business

In 2019, the National Bureau of Statistics and the General Administration of Sports of
China jointly issued the “2017 National Sports Industry Total Scale and Value Added Data
Announcement'. In 2017, the total production scale of the sports industry in China was
RMB2.2 trillion, recorded an increase of RMB781.1 billion. There was an increase of |5.7%
compared with 2016, and the added value increased by 20.6%. The data in the report
shows that the construction of fitness facilities such as stadiums, fitness trails and sports
parks in China has been increased continuously with a growth rate of 94.7%, this reflected

a rapid development in constructing of sports facilities in China.

In general, the sports industry in China continued to report growth during 2019. According
to the State Council document "R INRIEEEX - REBEHENETER" the
total monetary value of the sport industry is expected to reach RMBS trillion by 2025.The
sport industry will become increasingly market-oriented, while the sports service sector
is expected to embrace rapid growth. The central government has implemented policies
to streamline the development of the winter sports industry to encourage universal
involvement in and arouse people’s enthusiasm for sports activities. With the support of
national policies and the constant increase in public awareness towards their own health,
the robust development of sport market demand shall bring about new opportunities to

the current and future sport industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary, MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome
Corp* ("MetaSpace”), is the leading integrated service provider of construction, operation
and management of air dome facilities in the PRC. These air-supported domes are widely
adopted for use in multi-functional facilities such as sport and recreational facilities, logistic
and warehousing centres, industrial storage facilities as well as commercial exhibition
space. Unlike the conventional structure, the air dome structure is less costly to build
and to operate, more energy efficient and has short construction period and is easy to
relocate and expand over an open space. Up to the end of 2019, MetaSpace has already
constructed over 240 air dome facilities throughout the PRC. Currently, our major
customers including sports & event organizers, government departments, real estate
developers and warehouse operators. The Group will continue to invest in research and
development in deploying start-of-the art technology in building high performance air
dome facilities. The Group will continue to strive for combining advances in aeromechanics,
new materials, ergonomics, energy saving and environmental protection to provide
space for multi-functional facilities in order to satisfy and meet customers' need from
different industry sectors. MetaSpace has obtained over |10 intellectual property rights
(including invention patents, patented air fight and insulation system, software, copyrights
& trademarks, etc.) covering all key technologies in the construction and installation of air

dome structure.

During the year under review, the global market is volatile because of the trade war
between China and United States as well as the uncertainties about Brexit process in the
United Kingdom. The increasingly challenging marco environment and global economic

slowdown also affect the economic growth in China.

However, under this challenging environment, the revenue of our sports and entertainment
segment was approximately HK$168.1 million for year ended 31 December 2019
compare with approximately HK$143.4 million in the corresponding period and

represented a increase of 17.2%.

The increase mainly due to the increase in number of construction air dome facilities and
the average contract size has increased by approximately 25% compared with last vear
Meanwhile, other than concentrated on the construction services of air dome in sport
and entertainment facilities, we also increased our focus in the market related to industrial

facilities, environmental protection facilities, and warehouse facilities.

* For identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's revenue was mainly attributable to
the construction service of air dome facilities which amounted to approximately HK$155.0
million of which approximately 63% was for use in sport facilities and approximately 22%
for use in warehouse facilities services of air dome facilities, 5% for use in agricultural

facilities and the balance of approximately 10% for other functional purposes.

Other than construction services, the Group also focused on operation and management
of sport air dome facilities in Beijing, Nanchang and Taiyuan which contributed revenue of

approximately HK$7.4 million to the Group.

Looking forward to 2020, the Phase | economic and trade agreement between China and
the US. have been confirmed, it will be beneficial to stabilizing the world economic and
trade development. However, this may not be the end of the competition between the
two countries. There are still many issues that required more time to negotiate. It caused

more uncertainty in the macroeconomic environment.

The more challenging environment is coming due to the outbreak of the COVID-19
epidemic at the beginning of the year and has already spread throughout the world at
the date of this report. It may lead to the global economic downturn and recession. Our
business may fluent by the epidemic and also the economic growth in China, the extent of

the impact depends on how long the epidemic is under control.

Facing the current challenges, the management will closely monitor the situation and

formulate relevant strategies as required.

Logistics Business

During the year, the worldwide air cargo business is still highly competitive and our Group
continued to face directly and indirectly completion with other integrated logistics services
providers on a local, regional and international basis in the form of pricing and customers'
network. These challenges put our air cargo logistics business under pressure to drive

growth.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Although the economic growth has been slowdown in worldwide during the year, our
Group will continue to strengthen its sales and marketing team in order to explore
potential business opportunities in other markets in the near future. The management is

confident that the performance will be improved in the coming future.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholder(s)") for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

In the opinion of the Director, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance

its operations in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the investments in the sports and entertainment-related industry in the PRC with focus
in air dome construction, operation and management; as well as rendering of air freight

logistics services in the wholesale market.

During the vear under review, the Group achieved approximately HK$175.9 million in
turnover comparing to approximately HK$155.4 million during the prior year Gross
profit was approximately HK$48.7 million comparing to the gross profit of approximately
HK$30.8 million during the corresponding period of last year The overall gross profit ratio

increased from approximately 9.8% to approximately 27.7%.

The increase in turnover mainly due to the increase in number of construction air dome
facilities and the average contract size has increased by approximately 25% compared with

last year.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$63.4
million as compared to approximately HK$55.3 million in the year ended 31 December
2018. Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company was

approximately HK$4.9 cents (31 December 2018: approximately HK$4.2 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately

HK$128.7 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$120.4 million).

Other Income and Gains
The Group recorded other income and gains, net of HK$19.7 million during the year,
compared to HK$22.6 million in 2018.The decrease was mainly attributable to the gain on

disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$8.2 million was recognized in the last year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year decreased to HK$59.2 million, compared to HK$79.4
million of last year The cost control was implemented successfully during the year and it
lead to a significant decrease in administrative expenses. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in salaries and allowances of HK$12.0 million, share-based payment expenses

of HK$3.5 million and legal and professional fees of HK$2.9 million.

Impairment loss on financial and contract assets

The impairment loss on financial and contract assets mainly represented the expected
credit loss of the trade receivables of HK$13.8 million and contract assets of HK$2.4
million, impairment of other receivables and prepayment of HK$23.3 million and the
expected credit loss on financial assets are fair value through other comprehensive income
of HK$ 1.9 million.

Other expenses and losses

The other expenses and losses mainly represented the impairment of construction in
progress of approximately HK$15.9 million relating to the construction process of a sport
and recreation park being terminated and the exchange losses of approximately HK$7.9

million.

Finance Costs
Finance costs mainly represented the interests on the interest-bearing borrowings of
approximately HK$0.7 million and interests on lease liabilities of approximately HK$3.5

million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment increased by HK$13.8 million which was mainly due to the
increase in construction in progress of the new factory of our production line related to

the construction air dome services.

Goodwill
Goodwill for HK$37.7 million was mainly generated from the completion of the capital
injection of Metaspace on 18 April 2017 and the acquisition of Bodewei* on 28 February

2018, respectively.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets for HK$ I 1.6 million mainly represents patents, trademark and software

from MetaSapce.

Contract Assets

Contract assets are initially recognised for performance of transferring goods or services
to the customers before the customers pay consideration or acceptance by the customers.
Upon completion of goods transferred or services rendered and acceptance by the
customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The decrease in contract assets in 2019 was the result of more contract assets are

reclassified to trade receivables during the year.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income represents corporate
bonds purchased by the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Sino Sky
Trend Limited, through two financial institutions in Hong Kong. These corporate bonds
are measured at fair value and is determined by reference to the quoted bid prices at
the reporting date in the over-the-counter markets. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the investment income recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the fair
value loss recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income or loss amounted
to HK$8,069,000 (2018: HK$6,581,000) and HK$1,350,000 (2018: HK$9,304,000),

respectively.

* For identification only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

The fair value of these corporate bonds is determined by reference to the quoted bid
prices at the reporting date in the over-the counter markets. Going forward, the Group
expects that these corporate bonds will suffer a minor loss at fair value in the short-
run due to price volatility in global economic uncertain and the vulnerability of China’s
domestic debt market with tighter refinancing channels. However, the Group will maintain
its strategy to hold these corporate bonds for long term purpose to earn an attractive yield
and to minimize the risk of price fluctuations in the shortrun and to eliminate unnecessary

administrative and trading costs.

Nevertheless, the Group does not preclude the possibility of disposing any of the existing
corporate bonds before maturity if such disposal will be in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole in light of the circumstances, such as perceived
deterioration of financial health of the issuing company, vulnerability of default risk, and

consideration of favorable redemption clause at the option of the bondholder.
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Name of bond issuer

EERTAEHE

Panda Green Energy Group Ltd.

AL REEERA

Baoxin Auto Finance Ltd.

Baoxin Auto Finance Ltd.

Qinghai Provincial Investment Group Co, Ltd.

FEERESEARAA

China South City Holdings Ltd.

ERHERBRAA

Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Ltd.

ERHERRERARA

Oceanwide Holdings Co, Ltd.

RBERRHERAF

Gemstones International Limited

Gemstones International Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmR DN

Change in
fair value
Percentage to recognised in
Fair Value as of the Group's the year ended
Name of bond Investment cost 3| December 2019 total assets 31 December 2019
BZEW19F
BZE019F BAER 12A31H
12A31A8 EE4E HEERRN
BH AR RERE NEE BAl MEEZD
UsD'000 USD'000 % UsSD'000
TET TET % FET
PANDA GREEN ENERGY GROUP 8.25% 509 485 053 157
25/112020
PANDA GREEN ENERGY GROUP 8.25%
25/112020
BAOXIN AUTO FINANCE | LT 7.9% 1,000 1011 LI (20)
91212020
BAOXIN AUTO FINANCE | LT 7.9%
91212020
QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 7.25% 525 309 034 (106)
221212020
QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 7.25%
221212020
CHINA SOUTH CITY HOLDING 5.75% 488 500 0.55 70
91312020
CHINA SOUTH CITY HOLDING 5.75%
91312020
POWERLONG REAL ESTATE 5.95% 496 514 056 8
19712020
POWERLONG REAL ESTATE 5.95%
19712020
OCEANWIDE HLDGS INTL 17 7.75% 830 712 078 [
27712020
OCEANWIDE HLDGS INTL 17 7.75%
27712020
GEMSTONES INTERNATIONAL 8.5% 196 210 022 ]
15/8/2020
GEMSTONES INTERNATIONAL 8.5%
15/8/2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Name of bond issuer

EERTAEHE

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd

EXREBERERAF

China South City Holdings Ltd.

ERHERBRAA

361 Degrees International Ltd.

WIERBRBRAT

China Evergrande Group

PEEAKE

Qinghai Provincial Investment Group Co, Ltd.

FRERESEARAA

Fantasia Holdings Group Company Ltd.

EEFEREEARAH

Modern Land (China) Co, Ltd

EREX (FE)ARAH

Name of bond

ExEH

KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.75%
2622021

KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.75%
2622021

CHINA SOUTH CITY HOLDING 11.875%
27132021

CHINA SOUTH CITY HOLDING 11.875%
27132021

361 DEGREES INTERNATIONAL 7.25%
3161202

361 DEGREES INTERNATIONAL 7.25%
3161202

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 6.25%
28/6/2021

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 6.25%
28/6/2021

QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 6.4%
107712021

QINGHAI INVEST GROUP 6.4%
107712021

FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 7.375%
41012021

FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 7.375%
41012021

MODERN LAND CHINA CO LTD 12.85%
25/10/2021

MODERN LAND CHINA CO LTD 12.85%
25/10/2021
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Investment cost

RERE
UsDI000
TXRT

499

500

535

488

513

500

500

Fair Value as of
31 December 2019

HE019%
128318
NREE

USD'000
F£n

544

508

384

471

201

498

492

Percentage to
the Group's
total assets

(S
BEAE
Aot
%

%

060

056

042

052

022

055

054

Change in

fair value
recognised in
the year ended
31 December 2019
BE019%
12A31H
LFERAMN
NMEESED
UsD'000
TEL

25

(83)

(24)

(191)

126

(19



Name of bond issuer

EERTAEHE

Certtral China Real Estate Ltd.

BEHERNERAF

Guangzhou R&F Properties Co,, Ltd.

BMENHERNERAF

Chengdu Economic and Technological
Development Zone State-Owned
Assets Investment Co, Ltd.

RBEERMFAERAREE
REBRARA

China Evergrande Group

PEEAKE

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.

EXREBERERAF

Fantasia Holdings Group Ltd

EEFEREEARAH

Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd.

EXREBERERAF

Nuoxi Capital Ltd.
HRERARAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWmR DN

Change in
fair value
Percentage to recognised in
Fair Value as of the Group's the year ended
Name of bond Investment cost 31 December 2019 total assets 3| December 2019
HEWI9E
HZ0019% HAEE 12A31A
1A3IA EEAR I EERERH
EFEH RERF DAEE BAl DABESD
UsD'000 UsD'000 % UsD'000
FEL FEL % FEL
CENTRAL CHN REAL ESTATE 6.75% 504 503 0.55 25
8/1112021
CENTRAL CHN REAL ESTATE 6.75%
8/1112021
EASYTACTIC LTD 5.75% 13/1/2022 498 9] 054 38
EASYTACTIC LTD 5.75% 13/1/2022
CD ECOTECH SA 7.5% 121212022 801 833 091 9
CD ECOTECH SA 7.5% 121212022
CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.25% 512 479 052 9
23132022
CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.25%
23132022
KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.25% 367 370 04l 4
91412022
KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 11.25%
91412022
FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 11.75% 334 356 0.39 12
171412022
FANTASIA HOLDINGS GROUP 11.75%
17/412022
KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 1.5% 428 470 052 18
307112023
KAISA GROUP HOLDINGS LTD 1.5%
307112023
NUOX| CAPITAL LTD 5.35% 24/1/2023 497 192 021 (241)

NUOXI CAPITAL LTD 5.35% 24/1/2023

EREE X CEEERARA
—B-NEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Name of bond issuer

EERTAER

China Evergrande Group

PEEAKE

China Evergrande Group

PEEAKE

Tianjin State-Owned Capital Investment &
Management Co Ltd

REBBEAREELARAT

Agile Group Holdings Ltd.
EREEERRARAF
Total

@t

Equivalent to HK000
BERTAL

Name of bond

fE%xEH

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 7.5%
28/6/2023

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 7.5%
28/6/2023

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.75%
28/6/2025

CHINA EVERGRANDE GROUP 8.75%
28/6/2025

TIANJIN INVST MANAGEMENT 0.15%
1711212026

TIANJIN INVST MANAGEMENT 0.15%
1711212026

AGILE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD FIX-TO
VARIABLE (PERP) 8.375%

AGILE GROUP HOLDINGS LTD FIX-TO
VARIABLE (PERP) 8.375%

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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Investment cost

RERE
UsDI000
TXRT

492

500

504

500

Fair Value as of
31 December 2019

HEW19F
128318
NREE

USD'000
F£n

435

429

504

525

12426

96,674

Percentage to
the Group's
total assets

E%E
Eu
Sk
%

%

048

047

055

057

Change in

fair value
recognised in
the year ended
31 December 2019
BE0I9F
12A31H
HEERRN
NMEESED
UsD'000
TEL

(22)

2

(173)

(1350)



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmR DN

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss BEAREBEAEEHSBABRZERE
-3
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents the subscription of wealth BAnBEFELEESHT AR SR

management products issued by licensed banks in the PRC and an equity investment
trading on the National Equities Exchange and Quotation Company (the “NEEQC")
in the PRC. These wealth management products are measured at fair value and were
subscribed by the Company through some non-wholly owned subsidiaries for short-term
treasury management purpose and the equity investment was held for long-term capital
appreciation. During the year ended 3| December 2019, the investment income in respect
of these wealth management products in some non-wholly owned subsidiaries recognised

in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to HK$3.3

million (2018: HK$4.0 million).

Wealth management products

BHER

ICBC Wealth management “Tian Li Bao”
Net Worth Wealth Management Product (XLT1801)
TRIBE [RHE ] FEA2H Em (XUT1801)

\Wealth Bus Ambition No.4
BIEIE 45 (180K)

180 days “Yun tong caifu-wen de Ii”

[BRMEREM] s0KBHY

Li duo duo No.| Cash Management
NZSREERIH

RiYiYue Xian Wealth Management Plan B
EERE SR

China Merchants Bank ju yisheng jin
Wealth Management Plan A (63 days)
RERTREEERIIRE (63K) AFUEH 31 3]

Revolving term

RS

redeemable on due date

HEER
redeemable on due date
HE A EL

redeemable on due date

A ER

redeemable on due date

HEER

redeemable on due date

B ER

redeemable on due date

HHaED

BERTEBERIBIZBVERZR
BEERRNTRAZER/ NECERHERRSR
([NEEQC]) BBz RAKE -ZZEMER
BRANBEFEEERAETHZENBRA
RERSMMBER B MB AR RRE MR
AREDFERPEREE - BEWI19F 128
JALFE NEBREREMEEKRERER
RSS2 ENBLARENERZIRENK
ABIAEBT (018F 40ABHBET) °

Fair value as at Percentage to

31 December the Group's
Yield 2019 total assets Investment cost

R2019F

128318 ERRE
g8 ZAREE BEELLA RERK
RMB000 % RMB000
ARBTR % ARBTT
3.68% 8093 1.27 8,000
380% 13016 204 13,000
3.65% 6,007 094 6,000
220% 510 008 500
345% 501 008 500
361% 6516 1.02 6,500

LAY EEEEARAT
—2-heeg 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Wealth management products Revolving term Yield

BHER R BER

redeemable on due date  3.17%

A ER

ICBC Wealth management “Tian Li Bao"
Net Worth Wealth Management Product (XLT1801)
THREH ANE ] FELEHER (XTI801)

redeemable on due date  3.65%

B ER

China Merchants Bank JuYisheng Jin
Wealth Management Plan A (63 days)
RARTRALERIINA (3K) AFURE 313

redeemable on due date  3.60%

HHaED

China Merchants Bank Ju Yisheng Jin
Wealth Management Plan B (35 days)
RARTBRELLRIIRE (35K) BFRM

Total Bt

Equivalent to HK$ 000 HERTET

The Directors confirmed that the considerations of the purchase of the above wealth
management products were determined on the basis of commercial terms negotiated at
arm'’s length between the Group's subsidiaries and the issuers after having considered the

available surplus cash of the Group's subsidiaries for cash management purpose.

The purchase of the wealth management products was for cash management purpose in
order to maximize its return on the surplus cash received from its business operations.
The Group expects that these wealth management products with revolving term will earn
a better yield than direct deposits generally offered by commercial banks in the PRC, and
thus will increase the overall earnings of the Group. In view of achieving balanced yield
whilst maintaining relatively high liquidity, the Directors are of the view that investment
in these wealth management products are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. However, the Group may have intention to
release of any of these wealth management products at appropriate time for general

working capital purpose or any future business opportunities when opportunities arise.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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Fair value as at Percentage to
31 December the Group’s
2019 total assets Investment cost
R019F
128318 EERE
ZAREE aaEthl RERAE
RMB000 % RMB000
ARET TR % ARETT
15,000 235 15,000
9010 14l 9,000
6,005 094 6,000
64,658 64,500
72056 71,879

EXCHR BELIEMER REDNH
AEENBRRBETALEEASENE
ARAREREEERNZABRRERER
FHEACARGREEMET

ARRBEEMEREREEERE UK
NEEEEBEBRRZBSRRE @R
AEERPARRFH S ENERKHR
FEZBERIT - RYBRFIERHERR
FERER YRAMENARE EERH -
ENEATEEBRADES CRAFEHT
BREER BERN RENZFEMERE
NFERE URAARARRBER 2 BRMa
PRI » 25 B A BE B0 8 B I IR AR R AT AR 3%
EEMEME-—REEESAEINEE N
BRI RR AR -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Detail of the equity investment trading on the NEEQC s as follows:

Cost of Number of
shares at shares held at
31 December 31 December
Name of equity 2019 2019
20195 #0195
A3IAZ 12A31A
RA£® REBRAE FisRHB#E
HK$000 Share'000
THET TR
Shanghai Benemae Pharmaceutical Corporation
(Stock code: 830931)
TRCeEnHERNARAR
(BR1A % - 830931) 235 800

Trade and Bills Payables
The increase in trade and bills payables by HK$42.0 million was mainly due to increase in
trade and bills payables to suppliers for construction services of comprehensive projects

during the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The Group's net cash inflows from operating activities for the year under review amounted
to approximately HK$21.7 million (2018: approximately outflows of HK$82.5 million). As
at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$128.7
million, representing a increase of approximately HK$8.3 million as compared with the

position as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio (which is calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total assets) was 7.9% (31 December 2018: 0.96%). During year ended 3|
December 2018 and 2019, the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$406.0
million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$405.3 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$232.7 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$125.3 million).
The current ratio (which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was

approximately |.74 (31 December 2018: approximately 3.24).

BEEENWmR DN

ANEEQCE B 2 A BB T :

Change in fair value

Fair value at Percentage to recognised for
3| December the Group’s the year ended
2019 total assets 31 December 2019
BENI9E

#0195 128318
12A3182 (L L ERBH
MnEE BEEZILH MEERD
HK$000 % HK$000
TAL % TEL
25203 3.55 2968

EZRANEARENRE

FN BEHENFERENEREML0EE
BT DEEAREERS T2 2iE MR m e
NHEBZE S BN FARENZRE M-

RBES MBERREFBELE
REBEEE ARENCEEHRERAF
BRI TEEHET (018F L1258 8
BIL) cR2019FNAIR - RekBReERE
MARK1287TE BB 820185F 12431 B
COLRTER= v

R20I19F12A31H  BEXRBELE (AER
BERABEETE)R79% (2018F 12431
B :096%) - A& 20185 K2019F 12 A31 B
I EEAN - AL BN 85 R AT 6 F &
[ B o

RI19FNA3IR AEBRARDEEN
40608 BETT (2018F 12A318 : 4940536 8
AL BB B EL23278 BEIT (2018512
A318 412538 &ATT) < MBI T (MR
BEERARBBETE) B41.74(2018512
A318 :#324)

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Capital Expenditure
The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$56.7 million (2018: approximately
HK$35.8 million), representing additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments of approximately HK$2.5
million (2018: approximately HK$135.9 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant contingent liability (2018:
nil).

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2019, expect for the charge over the buildings, construction in
progress and right-of-use assets with the carrying value of HK$17.1 million, HK$37.5
million and HK$22.9 million respectively for securing the Group's interest-bearing bank

borrowings (31 December 2018: nil), the Group did not have any charge on assets.

Litigations

As at the date of this report, the Group had no material pending litigation.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE
Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers. The carrying amounts of bank balances,
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group will review and monitor
the level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, at the end of each reporting year, the recoverability of each trade debt
is evaluated so as to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors are of the view that the Group does not expose to

significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity Risk
The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a substantial portion of its financial assets
and financial liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its operations from existing

shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flows.

For the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Group monitors current and expected liquidity requirements on a

regular basis.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollar: Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year
under review, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure,
after netting off the gain and loss derived from foreign exchange difference, was not very
significant. Our management will continue to monitor our foreign exchange exposure and

will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is necessary.

Employees and remuneration policies
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 144 full-time employees (2018: 145) in Hong
Kong and the PRC.The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually

according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.

The emolument of each of the Directors and the employees of the Group is on the basis
of their merit, qualification, competence and experience in the industry, the profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other local and international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also participate in
bonus arrangements which are determined in accordance with the performance of the

Group and the individual's performance.

BEEENWmR DN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentives to Directors
and eligible persons, details of the scheme as set out in the section with heading “Share

Option Scheme” on pages 32 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in
Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs (excluding director’s and
chief executive's remuneration) incurred for the year were approximately HK$35.4 million
(2018: approximately HK$39.4 million).

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers, in order to
meet our own quality, safety, environmental and product criteria. During the year end 3|
December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Group maintained good relationship
with its suppliers. The Group also has a well-established business relationship with the

customers.

During the year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, at all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates, as
stipulated under individual employee's employment contract. The Group also ensures that
all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review and the policies on salary
increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all other related benefits are updated from
time to time. For detalils, please refer to the section headed “Employees and Remuneration
Policies” of this Annual Report, Being people-oriented, the Group is committed to
providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees and encourages them to have a

work-life balance.
In view of the above and as at the date of this Annual Report, there is no circumstance of

any event which will have a significant impact on the Group's business and on which the

Group's success depends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders
for the vear ended 31 December 2019. The declaration, payment, and amount of future
dividend will be decided by the Board and will depend upon, among other things, the
Group's result of operations, capital requirements, cash flows, general financial conditions,

and such other factors as the Board may consider important.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The management believes that clearly defined and long-term development directions
established for different business segments will help drive the Group's sustainable business
growth. Looking ahead, the management will continue to strive for better business
performance and deliver greater value to Shareholders. On behalf of the Company, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, staff, customers and suppliers for

their unwavering support of the Group.

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
30 March 2020
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors present the their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the Company's subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the sports and entertainment-related industry in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") with focus in air dome construction, operation and

management; as well as rendering of air freight services in the wholesale markets.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) can be found in the sections with
headings of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and "Five-Year Financial Summary”
set out on pages 6 to 23 and page 5 of this Annual Report respectively. Description of the

risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group believes that sustainable development is an integral part of our business. We
aim at creating long-term values for our stakeholders and contributing to the society by
carrying out our business in a socially responsible way. The Group is committed to support
the environmental sustainability and comply with PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments’ environmental protection laws and regulations. The Company is also
dedicated to promote energy conservation and responding proactively to climatic changes,
so as to facilitate efficient use of energy by taking several measures including constantly
carries out internal recycling measures in terms of its consumables (e.g. Toner cartridge
and paper) and implementing energy-saving policies to reduce electricity consumption, in
order to lessen the impact on environment from operating activities to achieve the target

of sustainable development.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are set out in

note | to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 76

and 77 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the Shareholders

for the year 31 December 2019.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 16 June 2020 to Friday, 19 June
2020 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, 19 June 2020, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 15 June 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note |12 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is

set out on page 5 of this Annual Report. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during the year are

set out in notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the vear are set out in

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 80 and 81 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, accumulated loss of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$282.7 million (2018: approximately HK$241.9 million). Under section 34 of the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Article of Association”), and no distribution may be paid to the
Shareholders out of the Company's share premium unless the Company shall be able to

pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for 48% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 19%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 28% of the total

purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's share

capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the

laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company repurchased a total of
7,750,000 shares, representing approximately 0.59% of the issued share capital of the
Company before relevant share repurchases. The average purchase price per share
was approximately HK$0.4281. The aggregate consideration for repurchased shares
was HK$3,317,525 (before brokerage and expenses). The total 7,750,000 shares were

subsequently cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem

any listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed below, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries had issued or granted any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights or exercised any rights in relation to convertible securities,

options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank and other borrowings of amount HK$33.5
million maturing within | Year (2018: HK$4.9 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any finance lease liability (2018 nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the vear and up to the date of this report are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr: Jan Wing Fu, Barry (Resigned on | April 2019)

Mr: Zhu Shixing

Mr. Lam KaTak

Mr. Zhang Tingzhe

MrTsui Ngai, Eddie (Resigned on 24 January 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Yebi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming

Mr. Xin Luo Lin

Mr: Pan Lihui

MrTse Man Kit, Keith

In accordance with articles 86(3), 87(1) and 87(2) and A4.2. of the Code on corporate
governance practices as set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code"), Mr. Liu Xue Heng, Mr. Hu Yebi, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui shall
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company. All
of the above retiring Directors are eligible and will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographies of Directors of the Group are set out on pages 64 to 67 of this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company is not aware of any change
in the information of the Director since the date of the interim report 2019 and up to the

date of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr Hu Yebi, a non-executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 7 November 2018 for a term of three vears unless terminated by three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Mr Lam Ka Tak and Mr Zhu Shixing, executive Directors, have entered into a service
contract with the Company on 23 December 2018 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng and Mr Zhang Tingzhe, executive Directors, have entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 January 2019 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.
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Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, an independent non-executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 24 January 2018 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors' fees are subject to Shareholders approval at general meetings; other
emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board with reference to Directors'
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group as well as the

recommendation of the remuneration committee.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out on notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 3| December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 3| December 2019
and up to and including the date of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 3| December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive in the shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in appendix 10 of the

Listing Rules (the “Model Code"), are as follows:
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Mr Xin Luo Lin FEMLE Beneficial Ovner ESBAA - 968,000 007%
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming LREALE Beneficial Owner ERBBA 290,500 - 002%
M Pan Lihui BUBLE Beneficial Owner ERBEA 347,600 = 0.03%
Notes: i
() Interests In Shares of the Company stated above represent long position. (I  ERRARBERMEOERETE -

(2)  MrLiu Xue Heng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Q) FBBLEBEARITERES-

EREE X CEEERARA
—B-NEER

31



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section

352 of the SFO as at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading "Directors and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of

the Company to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note

30the financial statements.

The Company's Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the written
resolutions of the sole Shareholder passed on 3 December 201 |, pursuant to which the
Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grants share
options to any employee(s) (whether full time or part time including any Director) of any
member of the Group at the exercise price for such number of Shares as it may determine

in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to
selected eligible persons including employee(s) and Directors as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of approving the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme Limit"). As at |6 January 2012, being the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Share Option Scheme Limit was 40,000,000 per-subdivided

Shares.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of ordinary Shares in the capital of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of

ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

A share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is personal to the grantee and
shall not be assignable or transferable. Share options do not counter rights on the holders

to dividend or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an AGM of the Company held on 16 June
2017, the Company approved to refresh the Share Option Scheme Limit. Share options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options outstanding, cancelled, or lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the relevant scheme rules) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company has

no other share option scheme currently in force for the year under review.

The Directors consider that the Company should refresh the Share Option Scheme
Limit so that the Company could have more flexibility to provide incentives to the eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme by way of granting share options to them to
strive for the future development and success of the Group.The Directors further consider
that the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Limit is in the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole because it enables the Company to reward appropriately

and motivate the eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme.

During the year 2019, a total of 3,338,600 share options were being exercised.

As at 31 December 2019, there are 37,025,000 outstanding share options, representing
approximately 2.84% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2019.
On the basis of 1,302,019,000 Shares in issue as at the 31 December 2019, and taking
into account the outstanding 37,025,000 share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for up to a total of 37,025,000 Shares (the “Outstanding Options"),
the Company may grant share options to eligible participants conferring on them right to
subscribe for a total of up to | 17,286,250 Shares which, when aggregated with 37,025,000
Shares that may be issued under the Outstanding Options (amounting to 154,311,250
Shares which represents approximately | 1.85% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
31 December 2019), is within the said limit of 30% of the total number of Shares in issue

from time to time as required under the Share Option Scheme.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is

exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is to be determined by
the Board provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer for the grant of the option, which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise

price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

The Shares Option Scheme will be expired on 2 December 2021 if not be terminated by
any general meeting earlier. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is 2 years at the

report date.
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The following table disclosures movements in the Company's share options outstanding TREBARANFARKITERBRE 2 Z

during the year: £k
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
price of
Granted Exercised Forfeited Date of grant of share options
At | January during the during the during the At 31 December  share options Exercise period of Note (i)
Name or category of participant 2019 Year Year Year 2019 Note (i) share options HK$ per share
BRETHEE
M0vE  REEER  REFER  REAEER R019E RHEREAS W& i)
HERSHEE R IAIR i it LS AR W) BREGTESE BRER
Directors:
B
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 9,680,000 - - - 9,680,000 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HBERE 01654A8H 0I6F4A8E Z2654A7R
Mr:Hu Yebi 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HHELE 01654A8H 0165488 2200654778
Mr.Niu Zhongjie (Note (iv)) 290500 - (290,500) - - 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
SR (MaEw) 201654 A8H 20165488 22026F4A7R
Mr. Lam Ka Tak 290,500 - - - 290500 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
HEREE 016E4A8H 0I6F4A8B Z200654A7H
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe 293,000 - - - 293000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
RERTE W1654A8H 0165488 2200654778
Mr.Tse, Man Kit, Keith 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 1o 7-Apr-26 0764
AXERE 016E4A8H 201654 A8E 2202654 A7H
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming 290,500 - (290,500) - - 8Apri 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
SERRE 016E4A8H 0I6F4A8B Z20654A7R
Mr: Xin Luo Lin 968,000 - - - 968,000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
FRMEE 01654A8H W0165F4A88 2200654778
Mr. Pan Lihui 677,600 - (677,600) - - 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 1o 7-Apr-26 0764
BUARE 01654788 201654788 E2026F4A7R
14426,100 - (1,258,600) - 13,167,500
Other employees: 25937500 - (2,080,000) - 23857,500 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
AfhfES: 0164A8H 201654788 £202654A78
40363600 - (3,338,600) - 37,025,000
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

0

The vesting period of the share options granted on 8 April 2016 is: first 30% of the share
options granted will be vested in one year after 8 April 2016, second 40% of the share options
granted will be vested in two years after 8 April 2016 and remaining 30% of the share options
granted will be vested in three years after 8 April 2016.The share options are exercisable from
the vesting date until 7 April 2026.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus

issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.
The closing prices of the Company's shares immediately before the date on which the options

were granted during the year on 8 April 2016 was HK$0.764 per Share.

Mr: Niu Zhongjie had resigned as an executive director of the Company on 7 November
2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of the report, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more

of the share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the register of

interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

EERRR AR A RABR S 2
R R

RAHE B AATREES KA IS
AT RE 2 B EEM RS
Bk RS 2 s B R I T

Number of Percentage of
ordinary  No. of share the Company’s
Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held  options held  share capital
s ER R EEAF
nE/ A8 M SOREHENE 28 REHE KRFAEIH
Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health (a) Through a controlled corporation 353,000,000 - 27.11%
Industry Group Limited (“BEMH")
ITEERRFEXEEARAA BBX LR
([eEgEeE])
United Win International Corporation (a&b)  Directly beneficially owned 353,000,000 - 27.11%
(“United Win")
United Win International Corporation BEERERER
([UnitedWin )
Central Huijin Investment Limited (0 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 7.19%
(“Central Huijin") 45,600,000 (S) 3.50%
PRESREAREMTELDF BRXREE
([hREE])
China Construction Bank Corporation (@] Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) = 7.19%
("CCBC") 45,600,000 (S) 3.50%
FERRBITROARDA BRXEE
([HhEZRET])
CCB International Group Holdings Limited (9 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) = 7.19%
("CCBIGH") 45,600,000 (S) 3.50%
BITRBREBRZERERAR BRXIEE
(BfTERERER])
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (“CCBFH") (0) Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 7.19%
45,600,000 (S) 3.50%

BUTERERERAA
(BfTemER])

BRRELE
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Number of Percentage of
ordinary  No.of share the Company’s
Name Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held  options held  share capital
s ER iR EERAH
nE/ A8 M SOREHENE 8B BREZRE RFAEIHL
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (0 Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) - 7.19%
(“CCBIH") 45,600,000 (S) 3.50%
ZREG (ZR)ERAF BRXREE
([RER])
CCBI Investments Limited (“CCBI Inv") (@] Through a controlled corporation 93,600,000 (L) = 7.19%
45,600,000 (S) 3.50%
CCBI Investments Limited ([CCBI Inv ]) BBRIA
Wan Tai Investments Limited (“Win Tai") (c&d)  Directly beneficially owned 93,600,000 (L) - 7.19%
45,600,000 (S) 3.50%
BBREERLA ([Ek]) (ckd HBHEEZEA
Hollyview International Limited (e) Directly beneficially owned 174,345,000 - 1339%
Hollyview International Limited BEEERER
Mr. Hu Yebi (e) Through a controlled corporation 174,345,000 S 13.39%
HEELE BBXELE
Directly beneficially owned - 968,000 0.07%
ERESHA
Mass Talent Financial Limited ® Directly beneficially owned 76,200,000 S 5.85%
Mass Talent Financial Limited BEEEHER
Mr: Niu Zhongjie ® Through a controlled corporation 76,200,000 - 5.87%
FEERE BBRRIEEE
Directly beneficially owned 290,500 — 0.02%

BEREGHA

(@  United Win is wholly-owned by BEMH (Stock code: 2389). Accordingly BEMH is deemed to
be interested in 353,000,000 Shares in the long position to be beneficially owned by United

Win under the SFO.

(b)  United Win directly holds 353,000,000 Shares in long position.

(@  United Winl b BERE R (RHK%:
2389)2EHEA At BEFEHFRBER
{5 - b B B R AR AR A M United Wint$ B
= B 1T 2 5 £9353,000,0008% B 13 F B

Ny

e

=

(b)  United WinE % ¥75353,000,0008% B 7 #9 &F

B

LREBEXCEXERERA A

—B-NFEFER
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() WinTaiis wholly-owned by CCBI Inv, CCBI Inv is wholly-owned by CCBIH, CCBIH is wholly-
owned by CCBFH, CCBFH is wholly-by CCBIGH, CCBIGH is wholly-owned by CCBC (Stock
code: 939);and CCBC is 57.1 1% owned by Central Huijin. Accordingly, these companies are all
deemed to be interested in the 93,600,000 Shares in long position and 45,600,000 Shares in
short position to be beneficially owned by Win Tai under the SFO.

(d)  Win Tai directly holds 93,600,000 Shares in long position and 45,600,000 Shares in short

position.

() MrHuYebi is the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited.

] Mr: Niu Zhongjie is the sole beneficial shareholder of Mass Talent Financial Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report, no
person, other than the directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party and connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the vear ended 31 December 2019 is contained in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its employees.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits to employees

beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at year ended 31
December 2019.

DONATION

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders by
reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in

relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012.

LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report, the Group had no significant

pending litigation or arbitration.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company is contained in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Company is contained in note 36 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period is contained in note 41 to the consolidated

financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the corporate governance

report on pages 44 to 63 of this Annual Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young

who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming

AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,

a resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the independent auditor of the Company and

to authorise the Board to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
30 March 2020
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed itself to enhance the standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics with the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining
and promoting investors” confidence and maximising Shareholders’ returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory

requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate governance.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and has its Shares listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing
Date”). The corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate
Governance Code as set out in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board, the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code from the Listing Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised
Corporate Governance Code from | April 2012 until 31 December 2019 respectively,
except for the deviations from code provisions A2.l and D.l4 of the Corporate

Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A2.1, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is both the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered that Mr. Liu Xue Heng has
in-depth knowledge and experience in the sports and entertainment related business in
the PRC; and he is the most appropriate person. Notwithstanding the above, the Board
will review the current structure from time to time. When at the appropriate time and if
candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within

or outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.
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Code Provision D.1.4

Under the code provision D. .4, the Company should have formal letters of appointment
for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company
did not sign formal letters of appointment with Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr: Xin Luo
Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui. However; the said Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association. In addition, the
said Directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide
for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the

Company.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure

compliance Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performances. Presently, the company
secretary is responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed, either by her
or by members of the Company's senior management, on issues arising at the Board
meetings. The Board delegates its authority and responsibilities to the senior management
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by the senior

management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation to the
Company as well as the advices and services of the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent professional advices
for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company's

expense.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Up to the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises four executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. The profile of each Director is set out in the “Biographies
of Directors” section in this Annual Report. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the

Board functions.

The Company had received an annual written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific terms and their terms
of office shall expire at the third AGM of the Company after the last appointment and may
be renewed subject to the Shareholders” approval at such AGM. Under the Articles of
Association, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
AGM at which they retire. Also, under the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code, every Director; including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr: Liu Xue Heng, Mr. Hu Yebi, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui

will retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The family relationships among the Board members, if any, are disclosed under

"Biographies of Directors” section in this Annual Report.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

46 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ARBRRIVEFRESHEBER RN THE
TREZBEREASKBUZEXER &
RAARREAE-

E=gdm

BEAFRAY EFEMNURTESE —
fIEMITERE R B FFMITERER
REARBTATEREXZRF -BEFZ
BESRAFHR ESEE —H-EF (&
BEUFRTES) MARERZMEE 2 XK
B NBREEREY EHEZEERNS
FIETERE -

ARBEMEEBLIFATESRELTH
RIE3 B E S BB E 2 FEER
ERE-ARARREB LN TESTHE
BIUALe

BUFNTESHARTREFY AHE
HENEZERFAFZE=ZREARABRREBFA
SLER LARZBRBFAEG ERHFRER
HASE REAMERA[ REEBRE
FAEL BERA/B=N—Z2EF (IWES
ABYF=Q)MEL AARKRIMELK
R=D—ZEFZAB)HARFERE-EEE
ENEERRERECRRBFAG LEE
ET e dtsh RBEEEIRTAZ AR
BREZ (BRARTREFHCES)
PE-FHRESE K-

=
R BX

RSN

REERRBFAS L 2SEELELE HHE
KA FEMEEREIBEERREES
R ERLBEBEEEE-

ERENBCRAZKERE (E)ERAF
hEEEE| —HRE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against for Directors and officers in compliance with code provision A.1.8. The insurance
coverage is reviewed by the Company on an annual basis. During the year under review, no

claim was made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and
discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out below:

. developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.

TRERARE

EEEIRE
ARBICERTAGIXEA LK REZLS
FBRETENERTHRIBARE RE - RR
BENEARREFETRYT -REABEFE
A BEHHEENAATRABEREN
e

ExgmEZ L
EEEH0RFANARRMEETERES
TCAL BUR DA R 5 om Bt B e % BUR BT 6 58 2 P
BR2EEE-ARBHAYREESTEN
EEZTLHRARFMKRREERRR S -
REFREROENEE ARARES
EEEARS T ASHEEIRKERR
BRRBEERNBRTEZ -BEAESR
— RIS BB AEE  BEBRTRRMY
Bl FEe - XL RHEER Bk FELR-
Rae MR RBRBER - REBRAENRE
KA REZGELNERMIERTE

>

e

EERH
£

EREE
EESRERITMICEE B

BIE gt AR BRI ERERABRREE
B YRESFSREEE:

« ROREFREERSLAEEABRNE
MEEERRE:

B RERARAEETEEREER
ENHEMBRRKEER:

- HIE-ROMRERETREENRTE
BIRAHRFM(WE) R

© RERATETTANERRELLE
AR PR -

LREBEXCEXERERA A

—g-nezn 47



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at regular intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

The Board met 10 times during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions, risk management and internal control systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the CEO and the senior

management.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 7 days before
the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. For
committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required notice period

stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are normally sent to all Directors before each Board meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board and each Director also have

separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are kept by the secretary of the meetings and are open for inspection by

the Directors.
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The composition of the Board and the attendance of individual members of the Board and BEWIFENAIBILFE EFGHEKK
Board committees meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the RN EREESEREFZECGALLRE

table below: BRAENRTE:
Attendance
HERR
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Directors Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting General meeting
B ZEEE FMzEES REZES
B Exees Ef EE Ef LE VN
Executive Directors
HITEE
Liu Xue Heng 7110 - - - [/1
221B
Zhu Shixing 7110 - - - [/1
it
Lam KaTak 9/10 - - - [/1
ME1E
Zhang Tingzhe 6/10 - - - [/1
REERE
Tsui Ngai, Eddie (Note 2) 6/10 - - - [/1
R (FtE2)
Jan Wing Fu, Barry (Note |) 2/10 - - - -

k= (M)

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Hu Yebi 10/10 - [/ 212 [/
HEE

Independent non-executive Directors

BUYKHTES

Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming 6/10 212 /1 212 [/1
EJEIEE

Xin Luo Lin 6/10 2/2 [/1 2/2 [/1
SFRM

Pan Lihui 6/10 112 [/1 2/2 /1
&

Tse Man Kit, Keith 6/10 — — — [/1
i X

Note: MisE:

(1) MrJanWing Fu, Barry had been resigned as an executive Director of the Company on | April ()  EBKEEEER019F48 | BEELRRRH
2019. TES-

(2)  Mr Tsui Ngai, Eddie had been resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 24 Q) BRI EEDR2020F 1 A248 B EARRA R
January 2020. TES-

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional development

programs for Directors.

During the year ended 3| December 2019, all Directors of the Company received regular
briefings, seminars, conference and/or updates relevant to the Group's business, operations,
risk management, corporate governance, directors’ duty and responsibilities, and other
relevant topics. Materials on new or salient changes to laws and regulations applicable to
the Group were provided to the Directors. All Directors have provided the Company with

their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the execution of
its responsibilities, the Board has established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee. Independent
non-executive Directors play an important role in these committees to ensure that

independent and objective views are expressed and to promote critical review and control.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The Audit

Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Lok
Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr: Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui and is chaired by Mr: Lok Lawrence
Yuen Ming, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended in 3 January
2019 to reflect the additional responsibilities of the Audit Committee arising from the
Stock Exchange's proposal on risk management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after Ist January,
2016. It is responsible for appointment of external auditor; review of the Group's financial
information and overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end, has
unrestricted access to the Company's external auditor: Its terms of reference are available

on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

To comply with the requirement under the Corporate Governance Code in respect
of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has
delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and review the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management and to review
the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance

Code contained in the Listing Rules and disclosures in the corporate governance report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee including the reviews and approvals of the annual results for 2018 and the
interim results for 2019. It also reviewed the Company's progress in implementing the

corporate governance requirements as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which can be viewed on the website of
the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 2011 with
its written terms of reference revised on 3 January 2019.The Remuneration Committee
comprises of three members, namely Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and
Mr. Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
It also makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and recommending the annual remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior executives and other related matters. Its terms of

reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed
remuneration policy and oversee the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management taking into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable

companies, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

Further particulars regarding Directors and chief executive's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to appendix |16 to the Listing

Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

To comply with the Corporate Governance Code, a Nomination Committee was
established on 3 December 201 | with its terms of reference revised on 3 January 2019.
The Nomination Committee comprises of three members, namely Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen
Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Pan Lihui.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size,
diversity and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and accessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director: Its terms of reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 3| December 2019, the Nomination Committee had reviewed and
evaluated the composition of the Board with reference to certain criteria. These criteria
included qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws regarding
characteristics and skills of the Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as ability to devote sufficient time
to the work of the Board and its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and
Shareholders” meetings; reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the retiring

Directors; and assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which can be viewed on the
website of the Company under the section headed “Corporate Governance” and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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TRER/R®E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION B HETH
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young, BZ019FNA3BLLEE B/ BAEAL
the independent auditors of the Company; is set as follows: BB RN LK G TR B 1P 2 H N D
LIRS

2019

20195

HK$'000

THRT

Audit Services EIZR% 2,200

Non-audit services FEZR 640

Total st 2,840

The non-audit services represent the engagement in connection with the Group's 2019 FEBZRE B A AR E20195F 1 210 75 #

interim financial report and the preparation of the Environmental, Social and Governance ERGREANBEE019F12A3IBLEFE

Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.The Audit Committee ZERE HERERBEZRE -BHEEE

had concluded that it is satisfied with the findings of its review of the audit and non-audit ~ BEEEHEEZRIIEEZRBE . ER B

services fees, process and effectiveness, independence and objectively. RUARBMM BIUREHMETRT
R

ERRE Y EREERAT
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and suitable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is contained in the

Independent Auditor's Report.

The Board confirmed that it has taken the same view from the Audit Committee regarding

the appointment of the external auditor.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and are designed for the Group to identify
and manage the significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group's business objectives.
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Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal audit function. The Group
conducted an annual review on the need for setting up an internal audit department.
Given the Group's simple operating structure at the present moment, it was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board through the Audit Committee had conducted an annual
review on the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Appropriate measures have been put in place to
manage the risks. No major issue was raised for improvement. The improvement of the
systems of risk management and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the Group's control environment and

processes.

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly reminds
the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update

appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 16 January
2012.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Shum Yick Chun (“Mr. Shum”), is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised of
the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the

Group and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr: Shum was appointed as the company secretary and an authorized representative of
the Company with effect from | April 2019 and further appointed as the chief financial
officer with effect from | July 2019. Mr. Shum, aged 38, is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained an associate degree of business administration in accountancy
from City University of Hong Kong in 2003 and a master degree in corporate governance
from Open University of Hong Kong in 2017. He has over |5 years of experience in

auditing, accounting, company secretarial matters and financial management.

Mr: Shum reports to the Chairman, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to

Shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Shum has attended relevant professional

seminars to update his skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules to take no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholders meetings.
To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.bsehk.
com, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. The Board, according
to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company voting will be announced on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to the
Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a director. The
relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of
this Annual Report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of
any future AGM.
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Article 88 of the Articles of Association provides that if a Shareholder duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director of
the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall deposit
a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days after
the dispatch of the notice of AGM of the Company. Details of the Shareholders’ right to
propose a person for election as a Director and the related procedures are set out in the
constitutional documents of the Company published on the Stock Exchange's website

(www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar. Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | |1 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A") of the
Company during the year under review. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the
M&A of the Company is posted on the Company's website (www.bsehk.com) and the

Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes
periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well

as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

In January 2016, the Stock Exchange amended the Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG") Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide" or the “Guide”) set out in appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

The amendments to the ESG Guide and related Listing Rules will come into effect in two

phases.

The Listing Rule amendments and the upgrade of the general disclosures in the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain”, as well as the revised recommended disclosures,

will be effective for the Company's financial year commencing on or after | January 2016.

The upgrade of the KPIs in the “Environmental” Subject Area of the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain” will be effective for the Company's financial year

commencing on or after | January 2017.

The independent ESG report will be posted on the Company website (www.bsehk.com)
and the Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) within three months of the

publication of the Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of high integrity who have
a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications,
qualities and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgment, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board, the operating requirements of
the Group. In conducting this assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity
(including, but not limited to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such
other factors as it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated future needs
of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives, qualifications,

qualities and skills on the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a minimum to be
required of any Board members in recommending to the Board potential new board

members, or the continued service of existing members:

0 the highest professional and personal ethics;

. broad experience in business;

. ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on their experience and
expertise;

. commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

. sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties; their service on other boards of

public companies should be limited to a reasonable number;

. compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
0 ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board members and

contribute to the Board's working relationship with senior management of the

Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which
the Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits with
its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined or recommended, as
appropriate, by the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account the Company's

financial results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

- the Articles of Association of the Company;

= the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time

to time;

- the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and

= any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

FINANCIAL, BUSINESS AND FAMILY RELATIONSHIP AMONG MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD

There is no financial, business, family or other significant relationship among the members of

the Board.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an effective
distribution of the resources and Shareholders' interests. The senior management will
continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's corporate

governance level and quality.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
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As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board consists of nine Directors, including four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director; and four independent non-executive

Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, and the chief executive officer with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Liu is currently
an executive director; joint-chief executive officer; an authorized representative and a
member of Investment and Risk Management Committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical
And Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Before joining the Company, he
served as an executive director and the chairman of Investment and Risk Management
Committee of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925) during the period
from | January 2011 to 23 December 2015. He was also an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718)
during the period from |1 July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an independent non-
executive director of Guangshen Railway Co,, Limited (stock code: 525) during the period
from 2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business
Administration from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom. He has extensive
experience in equity investment, corporate finance, initial public offer; and mergers and

acquisitions.

Mr. Zhu Shixing, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Zhu is currently an executive director, chairman and member of
investment and risk management committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Mr. Zhu graduated from the Central University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor's degree in finance and obtained his master
degree in software engineering from Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu obtained
a bachelor degree in sport management from Beijing Sport University in July 1994.
Mr. Zhu started his career as an assistant in the investment department of the China
Xinxing Corporation (Group) Limited* in 1994. During the period from 2004 to 2015,
he joined Beijing Holdings Limited (“BHL"), an affiliate of Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited (“BPHL", HKEx stock code: 925), and had been nominated the vice general
manager of various subsidiaries of BHL involving in industries of tourism, logistics, property
development and the executive vice president of BPHL. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience

in investment, financial management and property development.

* For identification only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Lam has over |5 years of experience in accounting and financial
matters. Mr. Lam currently served as the chief financial officer; the company secretary, the
authorized representative and the member of investment and risk management committee
of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389) and
is mainly responsible for overseeing the financial management, regulatory compliance and
investors related matters. Mr. Lam also serves as an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of the audit committee, and the member of the remuneration committee
of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (stock code: 1483). Mr. Lam worked as an audit
manager at KPMG till September 2010. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003 and a Master in Business
Administration degree from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013. He was a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till June 2010 and has been

a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.

Mr. Zhang Tingzhe, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 25
January 2016. Mr. Zhang was the Vice President of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 925) since 2016, devoting himself to the projects of developing and managing
commercial real estate and logistics real estate segment in Beijing. In 2017, he was the
president of Beikong Fenghuang Football Club, a sub-subsidiary of Beijing Enterprises
Group Company Limited, where he was responsible for the management of the Beijing
Women Football Team and once participated in the Chinese Women's Super League;
from January 2020, he has been the leader of the Sports Business Division of Beijing
Enterprises City Development Group Company Limited, where he was responsible for
the group's sports items such as football, volley ball, track and field and marathon, as well
as the management and development of industries. Mr. Zhang founded Beijing Hongse
Guangbo Advertising Co., Limited* in 2003 and served as the general manager, the major
customers of which are social welfare institutions including Ministry of Health, Chinese
Center For Disease Control And Prevention and United Nations International Children's
Emergency Fund. He served as the creative director in numerous famous advertising and
media creation companies during the period from 1998 to 2003, mainly responsible for full
scheme image planning, business marketing planning and implementation of media delivery.
From 2019 till now, he had been studying for the EMBA in Sports and Great Health from

the ICD Business School in France.

*  For identification only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hu Yebi, aged 56, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23 April
2015 and was redesignated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 November 2018. Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman of Vision Finance
Group Limited. Mr. Hu received his Master of Business Administration from Netherlands
International Institute for Management in the Netherlands and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Management Engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in Beijing, the PRC. Mr.
Hu has more than 27 years of experience in securities and financial services, merger and

acquisition and corporate finance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Lok has more than 30 years of experience
in public accounting, finance and commercial working experience in both Sydney and
Hong Kong. Mr Lok received his Master of Economics — Professional Accounting
from Macquarie University, New South Wales Australia in 1988. He was qualified as an
accountant in 1987, and is an associate member of Hong Kong Society of Accountants and
a fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He has been the chief

executive officer of CSI Investment Management Limited in Hong Kong since 2001.

Mr. Xin Luo Lin, aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Xin was a postgraduate from the Peking University in the
PRC in 1980. He was a visiting scholar at the Waseda University, Japan between 1980
and 1983, an honorary research associate at the University of British Columbia, Canada
during 1983 and 1984, and a visiting fellow at the Australia National University, Australia
from 1984 to 1985. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in New South Wales of
Australia in 1991. He was appointed as an adviser to the chairman of Guangdong Capital
Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000. He is an independent investor with over 2| years of
experience in investment banking in the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Xin is currently:
(i) an independent non-executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1 168); and (i) an independent non-executive director of Central China Real Estate

Limited (stock code: 832).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Lihui, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor degree in International Economics
from Beijing University of International Relations in the PRC in 1989. He has over 26 years
of experience in nonferrous metals industry. Mr: Pan worked in Mind Honour Limited from
1994 to 1998 as a manager. Mr. Pan founded Pentart Industrial Limited in 1998 and Able
Plus International Limited in 2001 and has since been a director and general manager of

these two companies.

Mr.Tse, Man Kit, Keith, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Tse is the executive director and chief financial
officer of China Technology Industry Group Limited (formerly known as China Technology
Solar Power Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8111). He also serves as an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical
And Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Mr. Tse has around 22 vears of
working experience in accounting and financial management. He worked in a number of
international accountant firms and the qualified accountant of Fosun International Limited
(stock code: 656). Mr.Tse is a fellow of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.Tse obtained a bachelors degree in commerce
from University of Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in

accountancy and finance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BE R

e
EY:x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT
INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 76 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report.We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures

performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
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accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HRERER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBERNABHERERER

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

BEL AW 1B

The Group derived a significant portion of its revenues from
construction contracts that were accounted for by applying the
percentage-of-completion (“POC") method.
BEEERHoREHKEEBTIAN (TPOC ) EAKR
BEEWD-

The POC method involves the use of significant management
judgement and estimates, and the revenue, cost and gross profit
realised on such contracts can vary from the Group's original
estimates because of changes in conditions.

POCES REREREEEH kMG BARBSNNCEE
Biess RAREFEGHEZSREERBR G EHRD
GE

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2, 3 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRRBEHR AP BERRM T3R5

We evaluated the management's assumptions and estimates in relation
to the revenue recognition on construction contracts through inquiry,
performing gross profit analysis and examining the related supporting
evidences such as project status documentation, invoices and contracts
with customers and suppliers on a sample basis. We re-performed the
calculation of the percentage of completion for material construction
contracts on a sample basis.

BERBMEER ETENON RZRAEX R ERE (WRE
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We also reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group's revenue

recognition of construction contracts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Key audit matter

HRELER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEHREERER

Goodwill impairment

BEHIE

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards 36 /mpairment
of Assets, the Group is required to annually test the amount of
goodwill for impairment. This annual impairment test was significant
to our audit because the net carrying amount of goodwill of
approximately HK$37,692,000 as of 31 December 2019 was material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, management's
assessment involved significant judgements and estimates, in particular
budgeted gross margins and growth rates, which were affected by
expected future market or economic conditions.
REEESFTEABGREENE EEBASFAARBE
BESE ZRFEREAREAGBM ERME BE
2 Iy BRREE2019F 12831 B R8#I37,6920008 T2 HE
REFELSEAMBHRRME NBEX IS BEEFGEY
BRERAE LA LERXIBEHARDRIEERRE
BUREENRRERE

Goodwill disclosures are included in notes 2, 3 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BBNREHNGE MIERRM T2 3RI5-
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We involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the methodologies and significant inputs such as discount rate used by
the Group. We also assessed key assumptions including budgeted gross
margins and growth rates by comparison to the historical performance
of the related cash-generating units and performed sensitivity analyses on
the assumptions used in the cash flow projections.
BEEZBABGEERHYESTEEREEANTERER
BARE (MFRE) -EEFTEBLRERREELEMMBHE
FAFEIERR BRABENZRERR THRERER
RIS BRRETHREREDN

We also reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group's goodwill
impairment.

BENCEHARERERERENRE-



Key audit matter

HRELER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEHBEERER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

ESERFERE B ESN B EFE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately HK$85,677,000 and contract assets of approximately
HK$80,837,000. Trade receivables and contract assets constituted a
significant portion of total assets as at 31 December 2019 and the
Group was exposed to credit risks arising therefrom.

R2019F 127318 - EXREA B 5 W FIAKIS5,677,000/8 T K&
AHIEERI80837,000/8 7T - 20195 12831 B - & S MR
UEREHNEEBKABENTIRN S MESERMEEEE
ERER-

The Group recognises an impairment provision based on the
expected credit losses (“ECL") approach under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. For trade receivables and contract assets which are
individually significant and credit-impaired, management assesses
credit losses individually by estimating the contractual cash flow
expected to receive, based on the evidence of credit-impairment and
forward-looking information. For trade receivables and contract assets
which are not individually significant and credit-impaired, management
uses provision matrix to assess expected credit losses, which is based
on collective credit risk characteristics. The provision rates are based
on the Group's historical credit loss rate and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking factors. The impairment provision is
subject to the management's significant estimations and judgements.

EEERBEERVBREENFIREH T ARAREES
B(EREEER])ZEDRERE -REREAREER
EEFRKFERANEENS EEEREEERERR
FETREEERA BBA AR UINENREREEET
BEEBER -HENTBEAREEREZE S RUFEAR
ANEEMS ERERBFAGEERBRSBEAEHER
AERHMEEER -BEXIREESEELEEBAR
B WEKABRARRE R MATEERR R ERBIUANEE
ERE I EPN RPN

Disclosures on trade receivables and contract assets are included in
notes 2, 3, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
BORBFERENEENBRRSNRE T BHRERME
3198200

We obtained an understanding of management’s assessment on the
recoverability and the ECL allowance analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets. For trade receivables and contract assets individually
assessed for ECL, we reviewed the impairment analysis of individual
customers with respect to their respective balances of trade receivables
and/or contract assets and the reasonableness for the estimated future
cash flows on a sample basis. For trade receivables and contract assets
assessed by provision matrix based on collective credit risk characteristics
for expected credit losses, we checked the appropriateness of
classification in the provision matrix on a sample basis and assessed the
reasonableness of the provision rate taking into consideration of historical
loss rates and forward-looking information.
EETHEREHEIRETIEARANEET DKM AREE
ERB B MRS - REMNRRMEEBEFENE SR
BRAENEENE BFAMELAEHBEZEPEE S RKR
BR/FENEESBEBTENBES T RAGRARRERE
HERN REREREFEERRSH 2 BREREFHESE
EFRENESREFBRANEENS KERBEFRBXRLH
BUEER BFUAMET e BB RERED BB E 1 R AHER
EENEEE-

We also reviewed the disclosures in relation to the Group's impairment

assessment of trade receivables and contract assets.
EENEEHNEBRESEESRIFERANEERETENE

EE:O

LREBEXCEXERERA A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BE R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error:

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED B EMRBRGESHBHRRNET
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated BEENERRHGEMBRRERELIE
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to £ B BREF SEE AR T 48 BUA B K 3R aR R L AR
fraud or error; and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is BEERE WHAHEEEE ROZERR
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility Lo EHER BT (EREE) WS Kite
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. IRBEREEMATR EETERARE

ARREMEMALE FSAEEFAEE-

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit ~ ABREBREXRE BTREERBES
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when BETEAETHNERIEREERMER
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, TEEE K 58 R Bt o 88 R Bt AR R BRFF 5
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the — #H7R ' W& B TE BT 5 18 ok & BB 2R AJ Af
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. TEGRERBESUBRRELNLEA
TR AR AR EREKX-

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and REBEENEAETERR TFERSE
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: EHE REESZARTREEEERE
B o =mAE .
x°BmsTIN -

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial S Bl R R AR A B S R N GEF

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures o MEME R ERE MR - R5T
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate RBTEZEF A ELRR  BE
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement EE&L BEZREATENEREH
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve o MG REFERR A
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of ﬁﬁ(z B REMRMEER A
internal control. f%w E B RAEEIREGFEK B KR

ARPR R EORBE R I M SRR T G2
HERERBLERE S

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design S TREEZEMEANEES L JE'JF’T’E}
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose BENEZER BIIEE ELT
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. AR BERMERER -

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of o AEFMAEHBERERE URES
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. FrEgtMEREHARER TSR

ERMEX L EEEMERAT
P £



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BE R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MBS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED B EMHBRESHBRENEE (&)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters EEREEHZELRBNSIEF REW
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of ~ LEEBIBHAH 2 RSB MERNEZ TIER
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters REZ AMEKEREZEE RIDEER
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the ERIDHALARBRBNLERE INEFR

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not MIEAT ESRRBRELESHEASER
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would HNTRERBEEARNBLEZENF
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. aMPAERREFRE SREZEENERH

BsRS Rt EEIR -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ng HARBUZHBMBENEZBEERAR

Siu Ki Ricky. Ripgo

Ernst & Young RKEERHAT
Certified Public Accountants BEDETAT

22/F, CITIC Tower BEPR

| Tim Mei Avenue INFEE IR

Central, Hong Kong RERE2E

30 March 2020 202053 A30H

ERMEX L EEEMERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBREkHEMEEKER
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A31HILFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
P E FERT FTET
REVENUE Wz ) 5 175,932 155361
Cost of sales HEKAR (127,227 (124,529)
Gross profit EH 48,705 30,832
Other income and gains H A Rz 5 19,653 22,554
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHEAL (8,642) (10,562)
Administrative expenses THAX o (59,207) (79.418)
Impairment losses on financial and SRREHNEERERE
contract assets ) (41,377) (8,193)
Other expenses and losses Hip s kBB (28,707) (20,558)
Finance costs L& B AR ) 7 (4,256) (117)
Share of loss of an associate 15— QR &8 (60) (96)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBAIE R 6 (73,891) (65,558)
Income tax expense Frig T 10 (350) (1,247)
LOSS FORTHE YEAR FAEE (74,241) (66,805)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)  Efb 2k, (E18)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may BEf A BE @iﬁﬁ RBMDBRERRL
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Eﬁﬂi@qy 3/ ( JE_E?E\
periods: \ .
Debt investments at fair value through other /N /‘Efﬁfﬁu‘fiﬂﬁ ZE A
comprehensive income: ﬁf‘@i@qﬁl s BBRE
Changes in fair value L\ AEEED o (1,350) (9,304)
Redlassification adjustments for gains/(losses) Utz (E518) sF AB R 2 EHT
included in profit or loss 7 "‘E;ﬂ%é(
Gains/(losses) on disposal um_l Sl (BE) 884 (554)
Impairment losses /U@TEE’J’TE 1,910 =
Income tax effect PIREE TS (238) 1,626
1,206 (8232)
Exchange differences: EE%%E L ’
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBEE  ERER
foreign operations 321 (1,916)
Reclassification adjustments for foreign B OBRABRFEALE BN ER
operations disposed of during the year 33 - (403)
321 (2319)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that BE R RABE @iﬁﬁ BMERHIEERRL
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Eﬁﬂi@qy 1/ (E51R) 3%
subsequent periods 1,527 (10,551)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) M E M 2 E iz, (E18)
FORTHE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B BE) 1,527 (10,551)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FORTHE ~ FREHEEERE
YEAR (72,714) (77,356)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e = N2 L
GeBEaRkEMZEHKER
Year ended 3| December 2019
HE2019F12A31BLEEE
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i TER FHET
Loss attributable to: AT B I, EE:
Owners of the Company EAREBA (63,417) (55,275)
Non-controlling interests IR ER (10,824) (11,530)
(74,241) (66,805)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: ATEEEGEEBEERE:
Owners of the Company RARIEBA (59,979) (60,378)
Non-controlling interests R ER (12,735) (16,978)
(72,714) (77,356)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARRILEBERFAEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF 5 EREE
THE COMPANY I
Basic and diluted EXREE HK(49) centsfll  HK(42) cents& 1l

LREBEXCEXERERA A

—z2—hegg (1



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a PR R

31 December 2019

20195124318
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i &E FTHET THET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERE 12 62,532 48,702
Investment properties REME I3 20,842 =
Goodwil Gk 15 37,692 37,692
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(b) 39,666 =
Prepaid land lease payments R L HE K 14(a) - 23,371
Other intangible assets HAith & B 16 11,589 22,887
Investment in an associate R—REBERARIZERE 17 106 166
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets T8 < ZUIE « E h EUCTRIB R B Ath & B 18 7,967 22,226
Contract assets ANEE 19 11,637 16,778
Trade receivables 2 5 R WA 20 1,670 377
Debt investments at fair value through BARBENEEEZHHA
other comprehensive income Hitn 2 ERENEBERE 23 67,576 57,378
Financial assets at fair value through BARBENEEEZHHA
profit or loss EamemEE 23 25,203 -
Deferred tax assets EXERBAEE 2 17,671 7,903
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 304,151 237,480
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories & 22 7,615 4,832
Contract assets ANEE 19 69,200 77,842
Trade and bills receivables B S RUHARERRE 20 84,007 70,695
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets T8 ZUIE - KM EUKIB R E M EE 18 9,772 35,875
Debt investments at fair value through BARBENEEEEZHHA
other comprehensive income Hip 2 mRENEBHRE 23 29,098 20,280
Financial assets at fair value through BRAAEBENELEEZHHA
profit or loss BERmemEE 23 72,056 74013
Restricted bank deposits X IR I $RITF 24 5,584 1415
Cash and bank balances Re RR1THER 24 128,657 120357
Total current assets mBEERE 405,989 405,309
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBARME
Trade and bills payables EHRNFIARENRIE 25 107,496 65,452
Other payables and accruals HitENHIEREER 26 70,042 46,871
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HERITREMER 27 33,480 4,944
Lease liabilities HEAR 14(c) 11,223 -
Loan from a related party Bk BN 28 - 1,228
Tax payable JE T8 10,484 6,768
Total current liabilities REREAR 232,725 125,263
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B A N
e BEARRE
3| December 2019
2019%F12A318
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FER FAT
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 173,264 280,046
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERABEE 477,415 517,526
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBES
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings i RRTTREMER 27 22,600 -
Lease liabilities HEGRE 14(c) 10,712 —
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 21 2,432 3352
Total non-current liabilities R A GRS 35,744 3,352
Net assets EEFE 441671 514,174
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ BB HEE AEHER
Share capital B 29 6,510 6,532
Reserves i 3 332,181 392,139
338,691 398,671
Non-controlling interests IR & 102,980 115,503
Total equity HiEn 441,671 514,174
Liu Xueheng Hu Yebi
2248 HEE
Director Director
EF EE
tHEE

X EERBERAT
—z—nEzm (9



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR

BE*

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A31B L FE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ERAREARS
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
Share- fair value Non-
Share Exchange Statutory based  through other controlling
Share premium Capital  fluctuation and legal payment comprehensive  Accumulated interests Total
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve income losses Total Total equity
RAAMAE
FEREAR
28 A
2@
Wiz
NRHAE SREE
K EX EER 2B QAEE
i KA BEE EARE  RBEE  QERE  (RER @#E  RHER &t FERER EE 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TR FiEn FiEn FiEn TR TiEn TiEn
At | January 2019 R0I9F1RIE 6,532 549,033% 10,055* 1,396* 4,070* 18.473* (6,650 (184238 398671 115,503 514,174
Loss for the year FAER - - - - - - - (63417) (63417) (10824) (74241)
Other comprehensive EREH2E
incomel(loss) for the year i/ (E8)
Changes in fair value of BAREERE
debt investments at EEZEHA
fair value through other Efp2EkE
comprehensive income, RBRE
net of tax ZRAEEE
kA - - - - - - (1,127) - (1,127) - (1,127)
Reclassification adjustments NP Gt
of debt investments at BARBENE
fair value through other BEZEALL
comprehensive income FEYEY
for gains included in BBRAE
profit or loss ExippE] - - - - - - 2333 - 2333 - 2333
Exchange differences on RRAEENERZ
transhation of ERER
foreign operations - - - 2232 - - - - 2232 (1.911) 31
Total comprehensive incomel(oss)  FM2E Kzt (BE)
for the year a8 - - . 232 - - 1,206 (63,417) (59.979) (12735) (72714)
Shares repurchased BERRA b 39 (3.278) - - - - - - (3317) - (3317)
Share options exercised BifeiRE 30 17 4192 - - - (1,658) - - 2,551 - 2,551
Equity-settled share-based NEREEUARN A
payment arrangements EROARZH 30 - - - - - 765 - - 765 - 765
Transfer to statutory and BREEERAERE
legal reserve - - - - 1470 - - (1,470) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR B - - - - - - - - - 202 202
At 3| December 2019 RW0I19%F 128318 6,510 549,947% 10,055% 3,628¢ 5,540% 17,580¢ (444 (49,125 338691 102,980 441,671
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$332,181,000 (2018: & ZEREREREGAVBRARZGEERH

HK$392,139,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE2019F12A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
LONG TN
Available-
for-sale
Share- investment Non-
Share Exchange Statutory based  revaluation controlling
Share premium Capital  fluctuation and legal payment [air value  Accumulated interests Total
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total Total equity
ARLE
DRihE BEERE/
B EX HEER AR RAEE
ik ey BER  ARREE  RBEE SRR OHEE fE  ZaEE &t FERER s
HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TAL TAL
At | January 2018 RISFIAIA 6484 537206 9464 (1,733) 3737 18,694 1582 (128630) 446,804 126,116 572920
Loss for the year FREE = = = = = = = (95.275) (55.275) (11530) (66,805)
Other comprehensive income/ EREp2ERE/
(loss) for the year (F8)
Changes in fair value of BAREERE
debt investrments at fair BEZHHALL
value through other 2EREZ
comprehensive income, BHREZ
net of tax NBEED:
BillGTd - - - - - - (8232 - (823 - (8230
Exchange differences on RRAEENERL
transhation of ERER
foreign operations - - - 3532 - = = — 3532 (5,448) (1.916)
Recycled gain from change in RLEMBRR
exchange reserve due to EEERRREEY
disposal of subsidiaries el 3% - - - (403) - - - - (403) - (403)
Total comprehensive incomel(loss)  FRZE R/ (1)
for the year &% = - = 3129 - - (8232) (55.275) (60378) (16978) (77.356)
Share options exercised BifekRE 30 48 11827 - - - (4512) - - 7363 - 7363
Equity-seftled share-based NEREEURN A
payment arrangements EROARZH 3 - - - - - 4291 - - 4291 - 4291
Capital contribution from FERRRLE
non-controlling shareholders - - 591 - - - - - 591 3038 3629
Acquistion of a subsidary WE-FHBAR 34 = - - - - - - - - 3395 3395
Transfer to statutory and BAAERAEGRE
legal reserve - - - - 724 = = (724) - = -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAE - - - - 391) - - 391 - (69) @)
At 31 December 2018 #0I8F 128318 6532 549,033* 10055% 1396 4070% 18473% (6650 (184238)* 398671 115503 514174

EREE X CEEERARA
—B-NEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE2019F12A31HILFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i &E FERT FTET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERLRE:
ACTIVITIES:
Loss before tax: BR A% A 1E : (73,891) (65,558)
Adjustments for: FLATIEE AR
Finance costs AR 7 4256 17
Share of losses of an associate DiE—EHE QA ER 60 9%
Interest income FEUA 5 (2,581) (612)
Investment income and return from financial A EERF 2 B HEEZ 8 A
assets at fair value through profit or loss BasemMBEEZREBA
K [B1 3 5,23 (6,290 4011
Investment income and return from debt BARBESEEEEEHFA
investments at fair value through other Hin2H s 2 BEHREZ
comprehensive income REWA K B3 523 (8,069) (6,581)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEMR BMERRBEER 2
plant and equipment B8/ (W) 6 475 )
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QA 2R/ (W) 6,33 1,108 (8,170)
Depreciation of property, ME - BEKREBITE
plant and equipment 6,12 2,835 3461
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 6,12 2,670 348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/recognition  EFEEENE
of prepaid land lease payments RIEA L HEEMNK 6, 14 3,576 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 13 11,392 [1,101
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥13 * & E R FERE 6,12 15,860 3,390
Impairment of investment properties BREMERE 613 252 =
Impairment of trade receivables, net B S RN IR RE T 6,20 13,783 7,786
Impairment of contract assets, net SRNEEREBETE 6,19 2,367 4,472
Impairment of debt investments at fairvalue A ABEFE B EEBF A
through other comprehensive income, net Hih 2 EW G BEBREZ
BB F B8R 6 1,910 (758)
Impairment of other receivables, net H b U FIE 2 B 558 6,18 23,317 (3,307)
Equity-settled share option expense PR 45 B R AR A B 2 30 765 4,291
(6,205) (53940)
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR HISRITIF I AN (4,169) (1415)
Increase in inventories FEEM (5,680) (1,402)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BREBERD /(L) 11,416 (41,671)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 BURIE K W B N (28,388) 21,642)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEFRIE - HAf FEUCR A &
other receivables and other assets HppEERD,/ (#) 11,553 (19,818)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 RN RIE RN ZEEM 42,044 30,633
Increase in other payables and accruals H it 7018 K e =T & RIE M 4713 31,072
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNEERE = E B R 2 F R 4,135 =
Cash from/(used in) operations rEGHMB/ (R HE 29,419 (78,183)
Interest received 2 YFILE 198 612
Income taxes paid ERED (7,870) (4,884)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities #& % & E)FT1S,/ (FTF)
Reng s 21,747 (82,455)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE2019F12A31HILFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = TERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEHHAEREME
ACTIVITIES
Interest received from financial assets at BARBEFEEHEEHABRL
fair value through profit or loss and SREERRAABEFTEAES
debt investments at fair value through Bt ARMEENE 2 EBIRER
other comprehensive income B4 S 10,487 ['1,066
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELEB (34,410 (7,762)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEL
plant and equipment FTS 508 462 16
Additions to other intangible assets REEMBELEE (101 (416)
Additions to prepaid land lease payments AEBRMNLHEERNK - (24,237)
Purchase of debt investments at fair value BERAABENEEHEEHA
through other comprehensive income Hitn2EH R EBRE (51,639) (11,268)
Proceeds from disposal of HERAABETELHZHHA
debt investments at fair value through Hth2mas 2 BRIRE S 508
other comprehensive income 32,325 32,391
Purchase of an equity investment included BEGTARANEBENAEEEED
in financial assets at fair value through FABRZEREENRAKRE
profit or loss (22,202) -
Proceeds from disposal of wealth management &t ARAABETEAEEEH
products included in financial assets at AR R EREENIEMEMR
fair value through profit or loss, net FriSRIE 8 3,010 48,704
Acquisition of subsidiaries LG L= NG - (5071)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE AR 33 - 15313
Investment in an associate R—EBE AR ZIRE - (247)
Loans to third parties ME=FREER - (38,175)
Repayment of a loan from a third party BE—RFE-FRECER 5,838 14,772
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 1% &/EBFTS,/ (FTA)REREFE (56,230) 35,086
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZDFERLAE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM IS RIE 2,552 7363
Share issue expenses BRAD BATR X - (1,000)
Repurchase of shares EAEl) (3,318) =
New bank loans FIBIRITE R 55,997 4937
New other loans IS H A B K 3,014 —
New loan from a related party LR 7 B - 1,139
Repayment of bank loans ERRITERN (7,136) =
Repayment of loan from a related party EREMTER (1,157) =
Principal portion of lease payments MENFRZAEHH (2,548) -
Capital contribution from FERRETE
non-controlling shareholders - 13,629
Interest paid ERFLE (2,605) @210
Net cash flows from financing activities RETBMEREREFHE 44,799 26,047
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZ2019F 128318 LFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TET FTAT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND R&RREZSEMEM (R ) FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,316 (21322)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#IRE KR EZEY 120,357 139,489
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INGE BE 2 B B 7 B H R (2,016) 2,190
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERRERREZEY
AT END OF YEAR 128,657 120,357
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND B & KRB EESENEHR DT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 24 128,657 120,357
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange") since 16 January 2012.The address of its registered office is 3rd
Floor, Queensgate House, | I3 South Church Street, PO, Box 10240, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1002 Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | I | Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group") are principally engaged in the sports and entertainment-
related industry in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") with focus in air
dome construction, operation and management; as well as rendering of air freight

services in the wholesale markets.

In the opinion of the Directors, the major shareholder of the Company is Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited which was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands, and the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

R

NEAREEEH
ItRBEXCEXEEARAA ([K
RE)  —HERRASHEEMKLZE
RAE - EBRMNEB2012F 1 AlI6ARE
BHMAEXIMARLRR ([BRA])E
R LT e A = B it A3rd Floor,
Queensgate House, |13 South Church
Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY |-
1002 Cayman slands © A BIRA & B8 E
BERMWH AT EETERNERI
REHEMETLOIEIOIE.

ZRBETERE BIRRREE &
ENEEARNSEBRTHREZER

EEZRR ARAZIBRRBIER
FREEXSEERALF ZARRH
SRBRMAKL - AR RERAT L
\mO

FRHEARZER
ARBTBHBLRRZFHENT:

Percentage of equity

attributable

Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company

registration ~ ordinary/registered LN

and business share capital EEERE DL
Name Bl e B&T Direct Indirect Principal activities
8 AMREREE BB/ HERRE B 3 IRRHK
Beijing Zhishun International Freight Agency Limited* PRC/ Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Air freight solution services

IRBREREEREARAR

hE/hEARE  ARKS00000007T

=& IERHG
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

I.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd) . DARKEER (F)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

FRMBLARZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration  ordinaryl/registered N
and business share capital EEERE DL
Name HRERL,/ BRf Direct Indirect Principal activities
2R AMREREE BB/ ERRE EE 3 IERE
Sino Sky Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
PEREARAT B 10,0007 7 REER
Xiang Tai Information and Science and Technology PRC/ Mainland China RMBI,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
(Shen Zhen) Limited*
FRESHE (R BRAT hE/HEAE  AREI0000007T REER
Zhong Hu Sports and Cutture Development PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
(Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu Sports”)
PERANXILER (XR)ERAT hE/REAE  ARE300000007T RARR
([HEEF])
Zhong Hu Yueyong (Shanghai) Sports PRC/ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Development Limited*
REHK(LE) BERRERAR hE/PEAE  ARE50000007 RARR
Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development PRC/ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sports stadium operation
(Beijing) Limited*
TERERERR (XR)ERAF hE/PEAE  ARES0000007 BEGEE
Shanxi Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports PRC/ Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Air dome stadium operation
Development Limited* (“Zhong Hu Dingfeng)
WAETEREEEERARAT hE/HEAE  AREK50000007T REGHEEE
(TPERE])
Shenzhen Xin Yi Heng Tong Technology Limited* PRC/ Mainland China RMB3,260,000 - 5092 Trading of goods
(“Shenzhen Xinyi")
AMImEEERNEERAR (TRIIEZ]) hE/EAE  ARE32600007T BEfm
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

ARAREEEH (&)
FRMBARZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable
Place of incorporation/ Issued to the Company
registration  ordinary/registered N
and business share capital EEERE DL
Name HRERL,/ GEL) Direct Indirect Principal activities
2R AMREREE BB/ ERRE EE GF3 TEEH
MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp (“MetaSpace’) PRC/ Mainland China RMB67,750,000 - 41.33* Air dome construction
ERABRBRERMRERERAF hE/HEAE  AR¥677500007 RERE
(TH8ERE])
Zhejiang Yuedun Zhizao Technology Limited PRC/ Mainland China RMB45,000,000 - 4133 Materials processing for air
(“Yuedun Zhizao") dome construction
MINBEENEARAR ([HEEE]) hE/REAE  AR%450000007 RERENMRNT
Beijing Zhonghu Ruishi New Material PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100 Trading of goods
Technology Limited (“Zhonghu Ruishi”)
ERPEERHMHMBARDT hE/REAE  ARI00000007 BEfm
([HEEA])
Zhonghu Changfeng Sports and PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 49% Sports stadium operation
Entertainment Limited (“Zhonghu Changfeng’)
IR P EREBECRREERAT hE/HEAE  AR#%100000007T BEHER
([hERE])
Zhonghu Yaoshi Stadium Management PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100 Sports stadium operation
(Beijing) Limited* (“Zhonghu Yaoshi")
TEREEEFER (LR ERAF hE/HEAE  AR#%100000007T BEGEE
(ThERt])
Bodewei (Beijing) Sports Development Limited™* PRC/ Mainland China RMB4,500,000 = 23.14% Sports stadium operation
("Bo De Wei")
BEg (LX) BEERERAR ([BEE]) hE/REAE  ARB45000007T BE5EE
* For identification purpose only.
# These subsidiaries are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company

and, accordingly are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company's control

over them.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Other than Sino Sky Trend Limited, all the above subsidiaries are limited liabilities
companies registered in the PRC, and are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong

or another member firm of Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of the excessive length.
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") and bills receivable, which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all

values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group

the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and

continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,

without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resufting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income/(loss) is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for

the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BRI RS LN EIRIER]

2.1

22

R

RRERE ()
REEE(A)

WARBREMBAR 2 EHIE g
RIEBROZHMBARZEE (BHEH
B)REE: ()EAFERER 2 RE
BER(iTABZHRFHREEZSE T
REZEROEWRRENAALEBE: (i)
ERERBERENAABERGIME
ERNERRBREL - SAEREME
Hz (E1R) RO ASEEN
o DEASERERNERBEES
BEMREREEEEEN I HEERS
KR EE-

BT RRNBERKE
ARERAF RN BRE B RKAA
THAIRBETEAMGEHRELER -

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

ARFEZIEPEATM

HKFRS 16 Leases
BRI HREERNE 65 HE

Amendments to HKFRS 19
BEMBRELRNE 19FAEET
Amendments to HKFRS 28
BEMEIMELERNEBHRAER]
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
BE (BRMBEREREEZES)

— BRI
Annual Improvements to 2015-2017 Cycle
2015 F20175F EHIH)F R 21

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
FEE R

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
REZLFAREELR R R
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Fr i H) T HEE [

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS | 1, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23
BRAMBRERAUEIN  BAMBRESENS 15
EAGTENE 2R LB RS RS BRMER]

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont'd)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the

Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs are described below:

(@)  HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int |5 Operating Leases —
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 7. Lessors continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS
17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method
with the date of initial application of | January 2019. Under this method, the
standard has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated
losses at | January 2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was
not restated and continued to be reported under HKAS |7 and related

interpretations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

(@)

(Contd)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to

contracts entered into or changed on or after | January 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

(@)

(Contd)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings, land use rights and
motor vehicles. As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either
finance leases or operating leases based on the assessment of whether the
lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group. Under HKFRS 6, the Group applies a single approach to
recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases,
except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected
on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset). Instead of
recognising rental expenses under operating leases on a straight-line basis
over the lease term commencing from | January 2019, the Group recognises
depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest

accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

94 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

22 BRBRNSENEKE (A)

(&
EREBEA- AP BRHEEHEE
HHEE

RANEEHBREERE 6547
TEHME

AKBREEETET LR
BRAENEESN (ERAE
AN REBZAREFEHER
LBEAGENEEMBENE
THREGMNRREEESEAR
BEHEXLLHE -REEE
I REERIE 1655 NEE L
FrAMEERA—EE —mJRRHE
RNFEERAEEENHEER
& KRAKEEEEMEE (RER
MEMNERER) LAEHA/N
BARATHHRE ([EHHEE])
(REMBEERRMERER)E
MR EENHERRH 2 K
B ARIRERRERB2019F ]
AIBRRNEERRNEEEOT
WHERX MR EREE
ENFE (FRE(ME) AR
AEEHERENETNE (B
BEMKA) -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

(@)

(Contd)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases (Cont'd)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at | January 2019 were recognised based on the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at | January 2019.The right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of

financial position immediately before | January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on that
date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets separately in the

statement of financial position.

For the leases previously accounted for as operating leases and entered into
for earning sublease rental income, the related right-of-use assets of the head
leases amounting to HK$21,384,000 were measured at cost at | January
2019, and have been accounted for and classified as investment properties

applying HKAS 40 from that date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)
(@) (Contd)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases (Cont'd)

Impact on transition (Cont'd)

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients when

applying HKFRS 16 at | January 2019:

J Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with a lease term

that ends within 12 months from the date of initial application

) Relying on the entity's assessment of whether leases were onerous by
applying HKAS 37 immediately before | January 2019 as an alternative
to performing an impairment review, and excluding initial direct costs
from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of initial

application
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22 EBERNEERKE (&)

(Cont’d)
(@) (Contd)

Financial impact at | January 2019

@ (&)
R2019FI1BIB 2T K

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at | January 2019 was as F2019F 1 A | BE A E 7 B 15 3
follows: EEAFISROTEMT :

Increase/
(decrease)
#m,/ )
HK$'000
FAET
Assets 8E
Increase in investment properties REWREEM 21,384
Increase in right-of-use assets EREE AL 45,172
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments Taf A & FOR A (23371)
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and FERTRRIE « Eofth R R IR I H At & R
other assets (3,680)
Increase in total assets BEBEEN 39,505
Liabilities &
Increase in lease liabilities MEGEEM 39,505
Increase in total liabilities BIRAEEM 39,505
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22 EFBERNEEREE (&)

(Cont’d)

(@) (Contd) (a)
Financial impact at | January 2019 (Cont’d)

The lease liabilities as at | January 2019 reconciled to the operating lease

commitments as at 3|1 December 2018 are as follows:

(&)
RWOI9FIBIB 2SS E (&)

P209FIAIBHE & FEER
2018F 12 A3 HH KL ERE
HERWT

HK$'000
TET
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 720185 12 31 B RIAZ & H S 1E 64,464
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and &k : 22 EAME & R RIS EIN2019F 12431 B2
those leases with a remaining lease term ended Al 45 R TH S AR R R IE
on or before 31 December 2019 (378)
64,086
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as MR2019%F | A | B 89 h0#E 71538 B A8 R A =
at | January 2019 10%
Discounted operating lease commitments and R09FIRIBNFREEREAERAERE
lease liabilities as at | January 2019 39,505

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
98 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9 only
includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method
is applied and does not include long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to which the
equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9,
rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under HKFRS
9, in accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the
net investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the context
of recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group assessed its
business model for its long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
upon adoption of the amendments on | January 2019 and concluded
that the long-term interests in associates and joint ventures continued to
be measured at amortised cost in accordance with HKFRS 9. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or

performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont’d)

©

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has
any uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup
sales. Based on the Group's tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing policy will be
accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have

any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.3 EEMERKREMRNEBIMEREEN

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been AEBWRELEHBEHRRTEAUAT

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BEMBRELERNEIRAEE]
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
BEMBMEERNENSR

BB G ERIE395 &

BEMBREERNETROER]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
BEEMBRELERF 05K

BB G ER5E285% (201 15) WIEFT
HKFRS 17
BEMBRELERNE 75
Amendments to HKAS |
BRI ERE IRHER
Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8
BEGERE IR R

B gHERIFSHEHIERT

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

3

4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

BB E R AR LR REEFTE L
iR &R -

Definition of a Business'
BT
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

k-2

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

REZHEABENAIAAELRZ B EXTABE

Insurance Contracts®

R & HP

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
BESERBRERIFNE

Definition of Material’

BEENMEZE

FA20205F | B I B3k 2 1% FiR 6 F 5 5

HEX

2 R20214E 1 B I B3 2 & AR FE 5
R

: R2002F | BIB 82 % RABHEE S
] A 2K

) R 1) 2 2 B A e R 2 E M T (R BR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition
of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities and
assets to be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from | January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will not

be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of interbank
offered rate reform on financial reporting. The amendments provide temporary
reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January
2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS [0 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (201 1) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However; the amendments are available for adoption

NOW.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS | Classifying of liabilities as Current or Non-Current clarify
the criteria for determining whether to classify a liability as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that the conditions which exist at the end of the reporting
period are those which will be used to determine if a right to defer settlement
of a liability exists. The amendments clarify the situations that are considered
settlement of a liability. The amendments to HKAS | are required to be applied
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022. The amendments must be
applied retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8 Accounting Folicies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments

are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material. The
new definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from | January 2020. The amendments are

not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

The Group's investments in an associate is stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of an associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate
is eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an associate is included as part of the

Group's investment in an associate.

R

24 FESHBIEHE

REBERRAZRE

BERRRAEERAHE—RITHTD
R0%IE EREN R AR AR WA ¥
HitNEAZENER - EATEE
B2 EHR 2B RISEBRATE
M JE il o H RHE B2 S UK

AEERBE RRIREIRBEESES
ERAR BRI EEFER TR ER
BREEMBRRKIIE -

REBREBRZENFNBREEREM
EEBEDFFAZEREREMEE
Waa sk o peoh - RN EE 2 AR MR E
REREY AAKEENFAELE
PREREEEETMED (HER) -
AEERERBZNRRER 20 ARERK
# MEER AR S EREE R EHRE
RREH ERRERESREATEE
BERERIFRSN - WEEH Z ARIFTEL
MEEE T AEARERBZ R RRE

H)—&F 7

LREBEXCEXERERA A
—B-NFEFER

105



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Fair value measurement DAREBETE
The Group measures its debt instruments at fair value through other AEEREHESPREHREAREBE
comprehensive income, financial assets fair value through profit or loss and bills ERHEHHAHEMZERGE 2BEBL
receivable at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price B BAREBEFEEEEEHFAERE

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group.The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of

such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Related parties HMER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EUTBAT - A BEER AN EEHE
B
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that @ FZABR—BALTHZATRED
person BEKE  MzALT
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () RAEEEEEGIHAR
PR
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEEREATZE: X
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a (iy AAEEXAEELLA
parent of the Group; NEREREKE :
or 19
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: b) ZARTETINEMEHHNE
B .
A= -
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEBEAEEBER-£
ZKBRA]
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a iy —REBAZ—EB(IZ
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); —ERNERA WBAR
EAEES N0} kPN
ANEEhE:
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party; (il ZEBEALEEHR/RA—

E=HNARLE:

iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an v —HERAF = TEEN
yisaj Y Y
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associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Related parties (Cont'd)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (Cont d)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

@

(vii)  a person identified in (2)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viily  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts

as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms and useful terms

Office equipment 10% to 33%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 13% to 25%
Computer equipment 20% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction, which is stated at
cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready

for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating
lease) which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the

investment properties to their residual value over their estimated useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are

recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at

least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont'd)

Patents and trademarks

Purchased patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and

are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3.7 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised

on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Leases (applicable from | January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,

except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right

to use the underlying assets.

R

24 FEEHEREE (&)

BREE (BERS) (&)

BRARBEE

PR B 2 BFI M iR Ty R AR AR f]
BEERIAR WNE37F 2 BEHER
FHNABEEH -

L

FIRE B 2 M TR A IRR A TR E &S
BIIRR - YR ESE I0F 2 fhaHE R F 5
NIABE AL -

HE (B2019F 181 BEER)

AEERA W LREFHEANRE A
BEHEE - MANRREREMZER
— B B P 2 ARl B O R 4 - B
AHARZBEHEE-

FEEESEBA

A& BB R E A E —m R Kat
g NPHEENEEBEEENE
fRoN AEBHERELEENFNEE
BERNKERERBEEEENNERE
BE-

ERMEX L EEEMERAT
8 —z-neex 115



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leases (applicable from | January 2019) (Cont'd)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

@

®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
(that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms

and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 20 to 50 years

Buildings | to 20 years

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in

which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

1 1 6 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

24 FESHBEME(F)
HE(B209FIBIREER) (#)

LEBEZREBA (8F)
@) EHEZE

()

EREEEREEMEA S (A
HEEERHE RN A ) #R -
{52 I & B R BASRUAE f] R
WEREFRBEBRTE 1t
EREHFENHERELETH
B-EREEENKABED
wHEREE®E BEENYSN
ERRA KRR BBk AlfE
HHHENFUREME WHEE
BoEREEENBERM RMA
ATRI6E A M E MBS IR A
NESRAMEMT

20E 505
| 22045

ME L
BF

HERE

MERERHEENMG B BRE
AR ELMEENFCREET
R HENRBREENR (B
8 E B B E ) BT E U A
EEE BURR MK T]
EHENKEFREBERTE
BN EE- BENRTE
RABERTEEAKETENS
BRERTEEMR LEENE
(AR RRANEEITER L
1) o PEURNME A R AT &
GEERNENN T N E S R TS
HEENRRAER R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (applicable from | January 2019) (Cont'd)

Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

®)

©

Lease liabilities (Contd)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the

commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the

accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,

the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a

change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases of buildings and motor vehicles (that is those leases that have a
lease term of |2 months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Leases (applicable from | January 2019) (Cont'd)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor; it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a

lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct costs), and
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leases (applicable before | January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic

rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the
lessor; assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from

the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and

subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under

HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont d)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective

interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont 'd)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt

instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change

recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or

loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets BERZACRMEE
A financial asset (or; where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group EREE (HWER —HeREEN
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's — Mok —HREEREEN—H7)
consolidated statement of financial position) when: IEEL\X—F\ A TEURRR (RIS

HAR & ISR R MIER) -

S the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 0 WERZEEBEMGREREME
MEBfER : 2

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset 0 AEECEEENRZBEEM
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without FRERENEN  HERE 8B
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and Ml REERBEBRELS
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of MIEATRE=ZAZ2HEZMNER
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially IRNEeRENEE: K )ZFE l
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. EEBZREENBAL D

KB (b )$E@§£ﬂ$ﬁ¥é%
REZIBEERAD D ER K E
W BEEEZ AR ENEIE -

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or WARECEZHNNZEREMSH
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it ERENBENIETVENLHE &
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither MEELRE *Zlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mﬂﬁ
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor O ARHEE -BEAKELBREE
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred FRBZBEERNBAI R K ER
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group R BERZBEENTHIE AEE
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated SAEASERELEZBEEENART
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the BEBERA AR -RZBEAT AEER
Group has retained. RAEHAGE CEZEEREHER
THiR R BRI SR B R B MO RE A [ A Ry
BitE-o
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred FTEREEERVANZERHE K&
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the ERRAEEASEIRAXNNER
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. RESENREENE-

ERMEX L EEEMERAT
: —z-heex 123



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that

are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including

historical and forward-looking information.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

General approach (Cont'd)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using
all reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt investments. In addition, the Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are past due or the

rating of bonds is decreased.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are
more than 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual

cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)
General approach (Cont'd)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed

below.

Stage I — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to |2-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but

that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for which

the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
individually assesses credit losses for those individually significant, or with serious
default indicators and credit-impaired and uses provision matrix to assess credit
losses for the remaining. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific

to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to

adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and loan from a related party are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIBALHEAR
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is REEE TS EH AR KBV E R
discharged or cancelled, or expires. &8 {EH WA MR
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender MRAE B EAR—BEARETK
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially BEENEERRAK R A B ERR
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the {EHERER]  WEERFIETHEHRE
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the RETERRRNBERERREAE
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. FREAENEERERER
Offsetting of financial instruments BE#HEMIA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 35 s Rl s BT A E R SHE SR
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to EHELBERNFREEE SRARZHR
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to BEEREEAGE AeREEREREA
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. BANEREKE WEFBRARZ2®R

FE

Inventories 7E&
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is FEERARFIE5FE (UBREER
determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in progress ) SR BN AR MAE T EEETE
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate AR M REKmT S REEEMEK
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices A BEELINAREES NEEE
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. A - ATE R FERETEBER TR

EMELMEAfSRRATE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

S in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or
services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration

to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Revenue recognition (Cont d) R (F)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd) REEFEHZ Kz (&)
When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer EENBERER Y EREmIRE
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the BREEFTERRFREEARE
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the FSBB—F ek AAREE R
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in EFREBAFRRRETNENRER S
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer at contract Hh BT e R B IR R B 3R A FE MR IE R (B 5T
inception. When the contract contains a financing component which provides the BE-BEHNBERENS  RAKEIRE
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised HEAMBAN BB —FR RESH
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability RO BEEERMNEZ LTSN
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the BREEENFSFRX - B P RE A
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services is B mI RS ER 2 e ERE AR A —
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant FIURZEHNME XHERTIER
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 5. BREBMEIMEERIE ISSRATRE 2
BN TRENEREAREN D 2T E
fEH R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

@

Provision of air dome construction service

The Group assesses a contract at contract inception, identifies each individual
performance obligation included in the contract, and determines whether
the Group satisfies the performance obligation over time or the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. Revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met: (1)
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group's performance as the Group performs; (2) the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or (3) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct good or service.

For most of the Group's construction services, the Group completes
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligations over time and the
revenue is recognised during the contract period based on the performance
progress as determined by input method, which best depict the Group's
performance in transferring control of goods or services. The input method
recognises revenue on the basis of the Group's actual efforts or inputs
incurred to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
When the Group is not able to reasonably measure its performance
progress, the Group recognises revenue only to the extent of the recoverable
amount of costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the

performance progress.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

@

®)

Provision of air dome construction service (Cont d)

The Group provides warranties in accordance with the contracts in
connection with the construction services. The warranties provide the
customers with assurance that the related constructed air domes will
function as the parties intended because it complies with agreed-upon
specifications and does not provide extended warranties in its contracts with
customers. As such, the existing warranties are assurance-type warranties
under HKFRS 15, which the Group accounts for under HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

Operation, management services and other sports related services

Revenue from the rendering of operation, management services and other
sports related services is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-
line basis because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group or at the point in times as services are

rendered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(c)  Airfreight services

Revenue from the rendering of air freight services is recognised at the
point of times as services are rendered. When another party is involved in
providing goods or services to a customer; the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party. The Group determines whether it is a principal

or an agent for each specified good or service promised to the customer

(d)  Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer; generally on delivery of

goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as

income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer: If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included

in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the

customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render

services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which

are given in note 30 to the financial statements.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Share-based payments (Cont d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the

cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or

performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were

a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in

the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those eligible Hong Kong employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Other employee benefits (Cont'd)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries and associates operating in
Mainland China are currencies other than Hong Kong dollar As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average

exchange rates for the year

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the

determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:
(1)) Determining the timing of satisfaction of air dome construction services

The Group assesses a contract at contract inception, identifies each individual
performance obligation included in the contract, and determines whether the
Group satisfies the performance obligation over time or the Group satisfies
the performance obligation at a point in time. The Group concluded for most
of the construction services, the Group completes satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligations over time and the revenue is recognised during the

contract period based on the performance progress.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the construction services because there is a
direct relationship between the Group's efforts and the transfer of service
to the customer. The Group recognises revenue based on the proportion
of the actual efforts or inputs incurred relative to the estimated total
expected efforts or inputs for satisfaction of the construction services
when construction components are delivered to the construction sites and

acknowledged by the customers or construction services are performed.
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3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Judgements (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(i)

Significant financing component in contracts with customers

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing

component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year; are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019 was
HK$37,692,000 (2018: HK$37,692,000). Further details are given in note I5.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets which are individually significant or credit-
impaired, the Group's management assesses credit losses individually by estimating
the contractual cash flow expected to receive, based on the evidence of credit-
impairment and forward-looking information. Except for trade receivables and
contract assets which are individually significant and credit-impaired, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
which is based on collective credit risk characteristics. The provision rates are based
on the Group's historical loss rates, taking into consideration of forward-looking

information.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default
rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector; the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates

are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of a customer's actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note

20 and note 19 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific

estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties, the Group
uses the income approach in the course of the valuation by taking into account
the net rental income of the property achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the leases, which have been then

capitalised to determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

Provision of ECL for Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income is an area that requires the use
of significant assumptions including but not limited to determining criteria for
significant increase in credit risk, choosing appropriate models and assumptions for
the measurement of ECL and taking future economic conditions and creditor's

behaviour into account.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current income tax and

deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future

taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Percentage of completion of construction contracts

If the Group satisfies the performance obligation over time for construction services,
the Group recognises revenue and costs according to the stage of completion of
individual construction contracts. The stage of completion is estimated by reference
to the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of construction services to date
to the estimated total inputs of the relevant construction contract. The percentage
of completion method involves the use of significant management judgement and
estimates, and the revenue, cost and gross profit realized on such contracts can
vary from the Company's original estimates because of changes in conditions.
Management reviews and revises the estimates of total contract costs for each

contract as the contract progresses.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on
their products and services and has three reportable operating segments: (a) sports
and entertainment segment engaging in air dome construction, operation and
management and other newly initiated businesses such as sports industry related
consultation and management services; (b) logistics segment providing air freight
services in the wholesale market and (c) others segment involved in other operating

activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment loss,
which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except that interest income,
investment income and return from financial assets at FVPL, investment income and
return from debt investments at FVOCI, impairment of debt investments at FVOC],
net, gain/loss from disposal of subsidiaries, non-lease-related finance costs as well as

head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

R

RELHEN (A)

Sports and
Year ended 3| December 2019 entertainment Logistics Others Total
BE2WHOFNAIBLEE BERRS iR Htr st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FERT TR TR
Segment revenue 7 Bk
Sales to external customers RSN P S E 168,052 170 7,710 175,932
Segment results Pl (61,383) (6,230) (773) (68,386)
Reconciliation: #E -
Interest income MEWA 2,581
Investment income and return from BARBENE
financial assets at FVPL HEEHGFA
BHEZeMEEL
REWARER 6,290
Investment income and return from BARBENE
debt investments at FVOCI BEEZHFA
Hit2EK =
BEBIREZ
RERA N R 8,069
Impairment of debt investments BRAREBETE
at FVOC| HEZEA
HitzEK R
BREKRE ZRE (1,910)
Loss from disposal of subsidiaries = KB A R &8 (1,108)
Corporate and unallocated expenses PERRIERZ (18,663)
Finance costs BMEKA (HEBEFS
(other than interest on lease liabilities) BRIN) (764)
Loss before tax BRTEAIE R (73,891)
Other segment information: Hitt 7 BMEH
Impairment of trade receivables, net B IR IEREFHE 13,762 = 21 13,783
Impairment of contract assets, net BREERMERSE 2,367 = = 2,367
Impairment of debt investments at fair ~ EAREBEFTEAEEE
value through other comprehensive SPARMEEKEZ
income, net BEIRE 2 REFHE
Unallocated ADEC - - - 1,910
Impairment of other receivables, net H e W R IB R (B F 5R 23317 = = 23317
Impairment of investment properties REMERE 252 - - 252
Impairment of property, ME - WERRERE
plant and equipment 15,860 - - 15,860
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE R
plant and equipment RiEE 475 - — 475
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 20,449 24 = 20,473
Capital expenditure* BRI * 56,729 - - 56,729
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

RETHEN (&)

Sports and
Year ended 31 December 2018 entertainment Logistics Others Total
HZE0I8F2A3IBIEFE BERIRE i Hity et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT TET
Segment revenue 7 Bk &
Sales to external customers RSN P S E 143,442 491 11,428 155,361
Segment results o EE (53751) (4,307) (974) (59,032)
Reconciliation: #Hhk -
Interest income F 2 WA 1,766
Investment income and return from BARBENE
financial assets at FVPL BHEZHHHA
BHEZeMEEZ
RERA L B3R 4011
Investment income and return from BARBEMNE
debt investments at FVOCI BEEZHFA
Hit2EKzR
EBHRE L
RERA KPR 6,58
Impairment of debt investments BARBENE
at FVOC], net BEZHHA
Hih 2 E RS2
EBIREZ
BAEFER 758
Gain from disposal of subsidiaries & B A Bl s 8,170
Corporate and unallocated expenses PERRIERZ (27,695)
Finance costs A& KA (117)
Loss before tax BR % A 5 18 (65.558)
Other segment information: Hitto BER:
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 5 RWHKIEREF5 7,786 - - 7,786
Impairment of contract assets, net BREERERER 4472 = = 4472
Impairment of debt investments at fair ~ RA S EETE A HE
value of through other comprehensive SARMEENE
income, net BBIRE 2 REFHE
Unallocated vl - - = (758)
Impairment of other receivables, net H e W R IR R B F RR (3307) - - (3307)
Impairment of property, W% BERRERE
plant and equipment 3,390 = = 3,390
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE R
plant and equipment BRI 5) = = )
Depreciation and amortisation WER#H 14,824 86 = 14910
Capital expenditure* BRI * 35,754 - - 35,754
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and * BEXRXBERABEME BFE R&E

intangible assets including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 4 REIBER(F)
Geographical information wEER
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) NHBEFKz=
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
Mainland China H B A 175,932 155299
Hong Kong BB - 62
175,932 155,361
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers. P ERDERRFE
H o
(b)  Non-current assets (b) HFRBEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHT
Mainland China B A 158,285 136,782
Hong Kong o 35416 35417
193,701 172,199
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of the PR EEERNEREE
assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets. FiEt N T eEem T ARET
MIBEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 4

Information about major customers

In 2019, revenue of approximately HK$33,722,000 was derived from provision of
air dome construction services by sports and entertainment segment to a single
customer: In 2018, revenue of approximately HK$16,123,000 was derived from
provision of air dome construction services by sports and entertainment segment

to another single customer:

RETHEN (&)
ARIEEFNESR

R2019F - EREBERRES R E
—EPRURERZERBELKRL
33,722,000/ 7T ° 7220184 - BREE Rk
RESHM I —RE-FPRERRR
ERISEEWEL16,1230008 7T ©

5.  REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5 W Hitt AR K
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WamAmmT:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers KEBTFEAHZIES 175,932 155,36
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 W Hitn AR (4
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZHE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () KzEHEH
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F12A3IALEE
Sports and
entertainment Logistics Others Total
Segments EERRL b Hity At
AR HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TET TER TER

Types of goods or services B mE iR 85

Provision of air dome Rt SRR R

construction services 154,980 - - 154,980
Rendering of operation and RULERERRER

management services and Hit A BB RS

other sports related services 13,072 - - 13,072
Rendering of air freight services  FR {22 18 flR % - 170 - 170
Sale of goods HEEMm - - 7,710 7,710

Total revenue from contracts RERFEH 2 Ba
with customers 168,052 170 7,710 175,932

Timing of revenue recognition & FB Wi 23 B ]
Goods/services transferred RE-BREEZN

at a point in time &/ % 20,474 170 7,710 28,354
Services transferred over time ~ B& R [ RS 22 RO IR TS 147,578 - - 147,578

Total revenue from contracts KRERFE4) 2 B
with customers 168,052 170 7,710 175,932
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 W HittARWKE ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d) REEFENZWE (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Cont 'd) () WUEEHGH (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZE08F12A3IBLEFE
Sports and
entertainment Logistics Others Total
Segments 25 RIRE b Hit st
D HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TET

Types of goods or services B mE iR 85

Provision of air dome Rt SRR R

construction services 126913 - - 126913
Rendering of operation and RftEE ﬁﬁ’gﬁ R K

management services and Hit A BB RS

other sports related services 16,529 = = 16,529
Rendering of air freight services  FR {22 18 flR % = 491 = 49
Sale of goods HEEMm - - 11,428 11428

Total revenue from contracts RERFEH 2 Ba
with customers 143,442 491 [1428 155,361

Timing of revenue recognition & FB Wi 23 B ]
Goods/services transferred RE-BREEZN

at a point in time En/ R 24,269 491 11428 36,188
Services transferred over time B i % 8 B ) AR 75 119,173 - - 119,173

Total revenue from contracts KRERFE4) 2 B
with customers 143,442 491 [1,428 155,361
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(0

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (Cont'd)

During the year, the Group recognised revenue of HK$2,423,000 (2018:
nil) that were included in the contract liabilities in respect of the rendering
of operation and management services and other sports related services
at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods.

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised below:

Provision of air dome construction services and rendering of operation and

management services and other sports related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in times as

services are rendered.

Rendering of air frejght services

The performance obligation is satisfied in one point when the freight services

are completed.
Sale of goods
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and the

payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for new

customers, where payment in advance is normally required.

R

sk - HA AR W (4.
RERFENZWE (&)

()

(i)

Wit BRI A (&)

FR - RNEE R 242300078
7C (20185 - &) » 5t ARG HAA))
RULEREERBRAMES
HEREEENENEBET BB
CHRER CBHNEERR

BYEE

ERAZEROELH SRR
M

TERRBEERB AR IEREE
REERHERAMEE HERE

BH & ERE R M R R RS 2
Iy i B K o

TERZEERE

BHEEREERBTHNER
BhER -

#HEEm
BROEBEERERIMNRERK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(i)

Performance obligations (Cont'd)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as

follows:

5.

sk - HA AR W (4.
RARFENZWE (&)

(i)

BYE (&)

RRABSEZEFRSELNEE
(RERIEHDAER) R FHE
WM

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER TER

Amounts expected to be recognised BB HERA NS ERE:

as revenue:

Within one year —F R 123,719 107914

After one year —FUE 7,710 15,881

131,429 123795

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations which are expected to be recognised as revenue after one year
relate to provision air dome construction services and rendering of other
sports and entertainment services of which the performance obligations
are generally to be satisfied within one to three years. All the other amounts
of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts

disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Cont'd) 5 W Hitt AR WK (&)
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT
Other income Hig A
Bank interest income RITH B MA 198 612
Other interest income H A 2 WA 2,383 154
Investment income and return from RARBE;EEEEZHA
financial assets at FVPL Bare@EE 2 IRENRA KD HR 6,290 4011
Investment income and return from RARBE;EEEEZH;A
debt investments at FVOCI B 2 AR RNEBRE 2 RE KA KB H 8,069 6,581
Gross rental income from investment REREMELEHEN
property operating leases Al Nk 1,943 438
18,883 12,796
Gains W=
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWME AR 2 s - 8,170
Government subsidies IR 458 B 56 595
Others HAth 714 993
770 9,758
19,653 22554
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBAEE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt TR THET
Cost of construction contracts BRESHKAR 95,570 85,296
Cost of services provided ERERBAAR 2,062 8472
Cost of inventories sold ERFERAR 6,800 11,086
Depreciation of property, W% BB LRBITE
plant and equipment 12 2,835 3461
Depreciation of investment properties X EMEITE 13 2,670 348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE
(2018: amortisation of (20185 : L E X8 )
land lease payments) [4(b) 3,576 =
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 16 11,392 11,101
Research and development costs B R 13,097 9,354
Minimum lease payments under RERE HEREMNT
operating leases - 12,660
Lease payments not included in the VEGTAHERRFEZHENRK
measurement of lease liabilities 4,973 =
Auditor's remuneration ZHEN BN & 2,765 2,885
Employee benefit expenses EERIAX (TERESER
(excluding directors’ and FETHASEHM (Hizs) ) :
chief executive's remuneration
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries IERF® 27,435 27,761
Equity-settled share option expense PR 45 B R AR A T 2 521 2920
Pension scheme contributions RGBT 7,435 8,737
35,391 39418
Foreign exchange differences, net* BE N ZRE - RER 7,914 15,379
Impairment of property, W% BE RRERE
plant and equipment* 12 15,860 3,390
Impairment of investment properties* 1% & ¥ 3 B E* 13 252 =
Impairment of financial and contract assets: & &l ;2 & 41 & E BB :
Impairment of trade receivables, net B 5 RN IBEREFHE 20 13,783 7,786
Impairment of contract assets, net BREEREFE 19 2,367 4,472
Impairment of debt investments BARBEFAEALHZSHA
at fair value through other Hih2EK R EHRERE
comprehensive income, net H 23 1,910 (758)
Impairment of other receivables, net Hofth JE WK IB BB 7 58 18 23,317 (3,307)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand & - B FE K& E
equipment* B 475 =
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries* HEB AR EE 33 1,108 =
& These items are included in “Other expenses and losses” in profit or loss of the * ZEFASAGABEREMEEK
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. BEvBEZNEmBETRER] -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

FINANCE COSTS AR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MEKARZ AT -
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr FTET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RIT R EADEFAE 1,619 17
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14) MEEEME (HE14) 3,492 -
Interest on a loan from a related party (note 37) B BRI R (M EE37) 47 100
5,158 17
Less: Interest capitalised W BAMER B (902) -
4,256 17
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION ESREETHRASHM

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year; disclosed pursuant to

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules™), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

AEREERTETRABRFMRES
ABHMERFMARLAEZR LA
([Em#A) « BB A B EHI5E383(1)
@)~ ) ROk A RIRGIFE2EL (H#
BESMEER)BRENT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Fees e 1,560 1,710
Other emoluments; Hi#i & :

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e REREYN= 770 132

Equity-settled share option expense PR 12 4 R AR T 2 244 1,371

Pension scheme contributions RIKEFTEIME R 141 3

1,155 1,506

2,715 3216
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8 EEBERFETHAEETM (&)
In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their RBEFE ETEEREERLEE
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further iRt M RIS IR IR AN A R B AR it 218
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of REBRAE E— T FBER M B HREM
such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, H30 ZERNFEBEHRAEERPHRR
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial EREs AABEERKLBHETE
statements for the current year is included in the above directors and chief MRAFEFARBREZEEE A
executive's remuneration disclosures. EXZEERFETHAEHERE
A o
()  Independent non-executive directors @ BYUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were AEEEMNBIUFRTEZZH
as follows: M
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expense Total
REEHE
ik BRERX ast
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
2019 2019
Independent non-executive directors B FHTEE
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming LERLE 120 14 134
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMELE 120 14 134
Mr. Pan Lihui ABUBRLE 120 14 134
MrTse Man Kit, Keith AR E 120 14 134
480 56 536
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B R ¥R AR Y R
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8 EBERIETHASHM (&)
(a)  Independent non-executive directors (Cont’d) @) BUFHTES (4F)
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expense Total
BiEEE
ik BB BRI a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET
2018 20185
Independent non-executive directors BV I HITESE
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming LERLE 120 76 196
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 120 76 196
Mr. Pan Lihui BAERLE 120 76 196
MrTse Man Kit, Keith i B A 120 76 196
480 304 784
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive FARERMENELIFNTE
directors during the year (2018 nil). EZBE (018F ) -

LREA Y EEEMERA T
T Zelheew 163



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3 3k BT aE
8.  DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8 EBERIRTHARHM (&)
(b)  Executive directors,a non-executive director and the chief executive b)) HITES —EBFPTESKE
ETHAR
Equity-
Salaries, settled Pension
allowances and  share option scheme
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions Total
e 2ER RESEE RS
ne BEVEN BRERX HE 3 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHT TR TET TR TERT
2019 20195
Executive directors HBTES
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* FESEp 180 413 144 136 873
Mr. Zhu Shixing MAEEE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MEEEE 180 - I5 - 195
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe REE & A 180 - 15 - 195
Mr.Tsui Ngai, Eddie " EE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Jan Wing Fu, Barry KELE
(Note (i) (PHEEG)) - 357 - 5 362
900 770 174 141 1,985
Non-executive director ~ FEHITES
Mr. Hu Yebi (Note (ii)) BB %A (M) 180 - 14 - 194
1,080 770 188 141 2,179
2018 20185
Executive directors BITEE
Mr. Hu Yebi (Note (ii)) HE B %A (M) 150 - 63 213
Mr.Niu Zhongjie (Note (if)) 4 485% 50 4 ( P 3 i) ) 150 — 76 26
Mr. Liu Xue Heng* 2128 % 4+ 180 - 762 ~ 942
Mr. Zhu Shixing ML EEE 180 - - — 180
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MEELE 180 - 76 256
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe R EE B ot A 180 - 76 256
Mr.Tsui Ngai, Eddie "L 180 — — 180
Mr. Jan Wing Fu, Barry ok E K&
(Note (i)) (PHEEG)) - 132 - 3 135
1,200 132 1,053 3 2388
Non-executive director kHTES
Mr. Hu Yebi (Note (ii)) BB %A (M) 30 S 13 43
1,230 132 1,066 3 2431
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R

8.  DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont'd) 8 EERFRTBAEHM &)
(b)  Executive directors,a non-executive director and the chief executive b)) HITES —EFPTESKRE
(Cont'd) ETBAR (&)
3 Mr. Liu Xue Heng is also the chief executive of the Group. & ZB2EEENAREET
B -
Note i MrJan Wing Fu, Barry was resigned with effect from | April 2019. Mk : Bk E R AER209F4R |
AR
Note i~ Mr. Hu Yebi was re-designated from an executive director to a non- Pz EAEFE S AER20I8F11 A7
executive director with effect from 7 November 2018. AEATESTHERIER
TES-
Note i Mr Niu Zhongjie was resigned from an executive director and became a sk : FEEEER0I8FIA7
staff of the Group with effect from 7 November 2018. ABEMITESUR AR
SEBT-
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived or AFEE UERESHFTETHABHE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: nil). kR EREEMEFME 25 (20185
&) o
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IERSFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year include one director which is also AEELEGERTHEERE —RE
the chief executive (2018: two directors included the chief executive), details of E(MRTHER) 018F - MEE
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for E(BETHRER) ) REFM 2 FE
the year of the remaining four (2018: three) highest paid employees who are neither N EXXFEE8 - FgamuE (20185F : =
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: BIARRAEREESFMES (K
EREFTIHFIZTHRAR) ZFEW
T
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREREDNR 2,236 1,380
Equity-settled share option expense Pt 4 B B AR AE T 2 10 179
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIER 285 206
2,531 [,765
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B R R M AL

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd) 9. IERSFHMES (&)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose FHNATEE 2 IFEFRIFFBTH
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: ABZESFMESHB T :
Number of employees
EEHAE

2019 2018
Nil to HK$500,000 Z£500,00078 7T [ -
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7 7T 2 1,000,000/ 7T 3 3
In prior years, share options were granted to one non-director and non-chief BREFE —BEEFRFFETHA
executive highest paid employee in respect of her service to the Group, further BrmamiESRERAEERMt
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements. TR B AR - HfE — P 5 H R B
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the BmEMT02 HE - EREBHAE
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in BaRERNZEEREZ AABEDR
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director R HHEE RAFERBREAME S
and non-chief executive highest paid employees' remuneration disclosures. BATALMFEERFEFETHAEZ

&= 5 B B M E B R -

INCOME TAX 0. FriSH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for the
Company (2018: one subsidiary of the Group) which is a qualifying entity under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2018: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of the Company
(2018: one subsidiary of the Group) is taxed at 8.25% (2018: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%).

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate
income tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25% (2018: 25%),
except for one PRC subsidiary which is entitled to a preferential tax rate at 15%

(2018: 15%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 0.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax

prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

R

FriGH (&)
HitERTOEMN 2R RAKE R E
FEBR I RNEREE M E AR R -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERr TET
Current — Hong Kong BH-FE
Charge for the year FAZH 888 3,859
Current — Mainland China EH - E A
Charge for the year FAXH 10,724 6,846
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE 39) _
Deferred (note 21) B (BET21) (11,223) (9,458)
Total tax charge for the year FRRIEX LA 350 1,247
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B R R M AL

10.  INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 0. FRfS% (&)
A recondiliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the statutory BERARBRRAIEERAR R REREBS
rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its BRI MBE RS AERER 2EE
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as follows: MEFEZHER X R ERY X E

AR 2 HERMT :

Hong Mainland
Kong China Total
2019 BB HEAE st
019F HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
T THER THr
Loss before tax BHATER (12,745) (61,146) (713891)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREFE B 2,103) 16.5 (15,287) 250 (17,390) 35
Lower tax rates for specific provinces  FFE& (0 3k B KB E 1
or enacted by local authorities MERER X (185) 15 (938) 15 (1,123) 15
Adjustments in respect of current tax  1B1E SR BN AR I8 2 %
of previous periods - - (39) 0.1 (39) 0.l
Income not subject to tax BEEHMA - - (857) .4 (857) Ll
Research and development iiEykehini
super deduction - - (1,205) 20 (1,205) 1.6
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2,862 (225) 5,023 82) 7885 (10.7)
Tax losses utiised from BEBFRECHERESE
previous periods - - (358) 0.6 (358) 05
Tax losses not recognised AR HEER - - 13,437 (20) 13437 (182)
Tax charge/(credit) RASEERKZHEL
at the Group’s effective rate REXL/ (H%) 574 (45) (224) 04 350 (05)
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B RS R MY &
INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 0. FriS® (&)
Mainland
2018 Hong Kong China Others Total
18 B hEI At it
HK$000 % HK$1000 % HK$000 % HK$'000 %
TiEn TR TR TET
Loss before tax BHAER (78770) (17367) 30579 (65,558)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEGELHE (1299 165 (4340) 250 5 04 (17278) 264
Lower tax rates for specific KEEhRE kR
provinces or enacted by ERRREHNZE
local authorities (185) (02) (485) 28 = = (670) 10
Effect on opening deferred tax of % T I ST EIHIERE
decrease in rates HEmz2 - - (2.239) 129 - - (2.239) 34
Adjustments in respect of BEBRNERE
current tax of previous periods 5% 37 (04) 67 (04) - - 3% (06)
Income ot subject to tax BASHIMA (9801) 124 (40) 02 - - (984) 150
Research and development super T ERE )
deduction = = (1002) 58 = = (1,002) 15
Expenses not deductble fortax ~ AAHIBAR 3167 (40) 1,324 (76) - - 449 (89)
Taxlosses utlised from previous B HARZBAHE
periods E& (144) 02 (71278) 49 (64) (02 (7486) 114
Tax losses and temporary AR HEBRR
differences not recognised st 349 (298) [1378 (655) 5 = 34875 (532)
Tax chargel(credt) at the Group's  RASEERHE
effective rate SHEZBERE/
(#%) 3859 (49) (2612) 150 - - 1247 (19)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,305,239,021 (2018: 1,303,474,816) in issue during
the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts presented for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 in respect of a dilution as the impact
of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per

share amounts presented.

BAREERERAAREERER

SREABBSENERE AL BE
A AEARLEFEABBRFAEET
BB ANE T2 305,239,021 % (2018
113034748168 ) 5T E o

BUE2019F R2018F 12 A3 B IEFEM
2IMBREFNER BT B EEE
HHRE RA/RTREBRELNMZS
NEREAEESEARREEYE -
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B s R AR B A
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 #E BERRE
Leasehold Furniture Office ~ Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT HEXE BAREKE  HORE  EERB e ERIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Tér  TErn  TEx Tér  TEn  TEx
31 December 2019 0195128318
At 1 January 2019: R0I9EIAIA:
Cost AR 31,388 9,541 1,948 1,683 1,732 2391 7,706 66,389
Accumulated deprecatonand  ZFTTERIA(E

impairment (9.164) (3.850) (137) (813) (L) (1373) - (17,687)
Net carrying amount REFE M4 5691 576 870 617 1,018 7,706 48,702
At I January 2019, net of ROI9FIAIE

accumulated depreciation and R ZAHER

impairment W N4 5691 576 870 617 1,018 7,706 48,702
Addtions AE - 16 9 2251 67 778 50,610 53,731
Disposals e (L791) (21 (132) (177) (26) (433) - (2,580)
Depreciation provided duringthe ~ F ZHEHT &

year (h122) (854) (112) (343) (178) (226) - (2835)
Impairment AfE - - - - - - (15860)  (15.860)
Transfers to investment properties & AR &Y%

(note 13) (K3E3) (16279) (3:469) (61) ) - - - (19811)
Transfers from inventories AFEER - - - - - - 2897 2897
Transfers from construction in AERIRER

progress 17,122 - - - - - (17,122) -
Exchange realignment [E 5 % (526) (349) ©) (54) (13) (21 (741) (1,712)
At31 December 019, netof 2019 12A31H -

accumulated depreciationand B EFATE RAE

impairment 19,628 1,014 m 2545 467 LI16 37490 62,532
At 31 December 2019 195128318
Cost A 24467 2,687 4 3412 1,025 1,661 53,069 86,802
Accumulated depreciaonand ~ 2ETTERA{E

impairment (4839) (1673) (209 (867) (558) (545) (15,579) (24270)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,628 1,014 m 2545 467 L,I16 37490 62,532
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B R ¥R AR Y RE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 12 Y% BERRME(E)
Leasehold Furniture Office  Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buidings improvements  andfitures  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total

BY HERE KARRE HORE ERRG nE ERIE it
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HK§00
Tén  TRr  TEr  TEn  TEAn  TEnr  TEr  T#n

3| December 2018 0I8F 128318
At 31 December 2017 and R0I7F12A31B R

at | January 2018: R0ISEIAIA:
Cost A 7730 5058 1,784 1,557 1093 1542 6,736 25500
Accumulated deprecatonand  ZFTTERIA(E

impairment (130) (3158) (1256) (468) (781) (%) - (6754)
Net carrying amount REFE 7600 1900 518 1089 31 ] 6736 18746
At | January 2018, net of RWIBFIAIAR

accumulated depreciationand B EFATE RAE

impairment 7600 1,900 528 1,089 31 581 6,736 18746
Addttions HE = 4631 120 124 500 645 13033 19,053
Acquistion of subsidiaries WEREAA 2984 9 - 5 23 105 - 3031
Disposals e - - - - (I - - (1)
Depreciation provided duringthe ~ F ZHEHT &

year (1842) {75) (155 (303) (174) (260) - (3461)
Impairment AfE (3390) - - - - - - (3390)
Transfers from investment AREMFER

properties (note 13) (H13) 18,860 - 8 - - - 18944
Exchange realigament ek (1988) %) @3N 45) (39) (53) (2003) (4310)
At31 December 018 netof  R2018%12A318

acumulated depreciationand MR BFTERAME

impairment 04 5691 576 870 617 1018 17,706 48702
At 31 December 2018 R0I8F 128317
Cost A 31,388 954l 1948 1683 732 2391 17,706 66,389
Accumulated depreciaonand ~ 2ETTERA{E

impaiment Ol6) (80 (137 SR (T N () - (178
Net carrying amount REFE 2.4 5691 576 870 617 1018 17,706 48702
At 31 December 2019, the Group's buildings and construction in progress with an R019FENRAZIR AEBEELER
aggregate carrying amount of HK$54,612,000 (2018: nil) was pledged to secure 54,612,000 70 (2018F : E)MEF K
bank loans of the Group (Note 27). ERIREE TERNERASERTE

F(PFsE27) -
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 3. REWE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERx TAET
Carrying amount at 3| December RI2A3IB 2 REE - 18,667
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNBAVBHREENF ISR T E

(note 2) (FiEE2) 21,384 —
Carrying amount at | January RIAIBZEREE 21,384 18,667
Transfers from property, plant and equipment BYI% BB KRR AR (PEE12)

(note 12) 19811 -
Transfers from right-of-use assets (note |4) BERAEEEER (M4) 5,803 -
Depreciation (note 6) E (MsTe) (2,670) (348)
Impairment (note 6) RAE (PFi5E6) (252) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33) HE—fE AR (PEE33) (22,263) -
Transfers to property, plant and equipment (note 12) BB E )% - BB & & (H1EE12) - (18944)
Exchange realignment BE 5 3 B 971) 625
Carrying amount at 31 December RI2A3IBZEREE 20,842 -

The Group's investment properties consist of an air dome stadium in Mainland

China.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group's investment properties

were approximately HK$20,842,000 (2018: nil) as at 31 December 2019.

The fair value measurements of the Group's investment properties are categorised
within Level 3.The valuation technique is the income approach and the significant
inputs used in the fair value measurement are the estimated rental value and

discount rate.
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R

LEASES 14 8
The Group as a lessee FEEEREBA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings used in its operations. AEEREANERBZEENE T2
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the FHENMEESH - BRAMEL— XK
owners with lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made FFAMEEWERE T HER20
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms ZE50F MBRBZZLHHEENRK
of | to 20 years. BIreBES NERRIE - BFHEDN
HHRERIZ205-
(a)  Prepaid land lease payments (before | January 2019) (a) FANLHHEENE (R2019F1A
1A ZA)
HK$'000
THET
Carrying amount at | January 2018 201851 A1 B REREE
Additions NE 25,069
Recognised in profit or loss during the year FARBRER (209)
Exchange realignment BE 5 8 B (1,006)
Carrying amount at 3| December 2018 201812431 BMEREE 23,854
Analysed into: MR-
Current portion mENER S 483
Non-current portion FEREBHS 2337
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14. LEASES (Cont'd) 14 & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) FEBEREBA (HF)
(b)  Right-of-use assets () EAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements AEEFAEAEEENREE
during the year are as follows: REBHMT
Prepaid
land lease Land use
payments rights Buildings Total
B
TiwEE T
A £ F 1 BT #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAET TAT
As at | January 2019 20191818 23,854 5953 15,365 45,172
Additions NE = - 4748 4748
Depreciation charge TERY (479) (132) (2965) (3576)
Transfer to investment properties R E & Y2
(note 13) (HEEE13) - (5.803) - (5,.803)
Exchange realignment 0E 7 #H (500) (18) (357) (875)
At 3| December 2019 2019512 A31H 22,875 - 16,791 39,666

At 31 December 2019, the Group's right-of-use assets with an aggregate

carrying amount of HK$22,875,000 (2018: nil) were pledged to secure bank

loans of the Group (Note 27).
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14.

LEASES (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

(©)

Lease liabilities

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

14 HE(#F)
AEBEREBA (£F)

(©

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year

are as follows:

HERE

FAHERRNEREERZ BN
N

2019

HK$'000

FTERT

Carrying amount at | January RIAIBREREE 39,505

New leases g 4,748

Accretion of interest recognised during the year FANEERNEILE 3,492

Payments BES (3,478)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33) HE—BHE AR (ME33) (21,323)

Exchange realignment BE 3, R 2 (1,009)

Carrying amount at 3| December RI2A3I B EREE 21,935
Analysed into: MR-

Current portion mEE D 11,223

Non-current portion kP 10,712

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40 to the financial

statements.

HEBEMNIBERSMEER
RS R R M 540 ©
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14. LEASES (Cont'd) 14 & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) FEBEREBA (HF)
(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows: (@ HEZTHERHEEEMETEN
T:
2019
HK$'000
TER
Interest on lease liabilities MEREHNE 3,492
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEENERX 3,576
Expense relating to short-term leases and B8 B B R BR T EAM2019F 12 A31 B =
other leases with remaining lease terms ended ZAfEme K8 EH R X
on or before 3| December 2019 3,240
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets EREEEEERBNFX 129
Total amount recognised in profit or loss REBRER R 10,437

(¢) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to

leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 34(c) and 36,

respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note |3) consisting of an air dome

stadium under an operating lease arrangement. The terms of the lease require

the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$1,943,000 (2018:

HK$438,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

LEASES (Cont’d) 14 & (&)
The Group as a lessor (Cont'd) FEBEREBAA (F)
At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by RBRESER AEEREREBEEEP
the Group in future periods under a non-cancellable operating lease with its tenants LIS S HEN YRR E
are as follows: AT
2019
HK$'000
TERT
Within one year —ER 1,922,000
After one year but within two years —FRERMER 1,890,000
After two years but within three years MERER=FA 1,100,000
After three years but within four years =FREREER 750,000
After four years but within five years MERERAFA 375,000
6,037,000
GOODWILL 5. &8
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Cost at | January, net of accumulated impairment R 1 A 1B Z XA - kR 250R1E 37,692 29,138
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE T B 2 7] - 8,554
Cost at 31 December RI2A3IB Z KA 37,692 37,692
At 31 December 2019: P2019F 12A31 8 -
Cost BEN 37,692 37,692
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - -
Net carrying amount AREFE 37,692 37,692
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B R R M AL

GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the following cash-

generating units (the “CGU") for impairment testing;

. Air dome construction CGU;

J Bodewei stadium operation CGU; and

J Trading products CGU.

Air dome construction CGU

The recoverable amount of the air dome construction CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is | 1.85% (2018: 12.3%). The growth rate
used to extrapolate the cash flows of the air dome construction unit beyond the
five-year period is 3.0% (2018: 3.0%), which is same as the expected long-term

inflation rate.

Bodewei stadium operation CGU

The recoverable amount of the Bodewei stadium operation CGU was determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a seven-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 19.06% (2018: 18.2%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the Bodewei stadium operation
unit beyond the seven-year period is 3.0% (2018: 3.0%), which is same as the

expected long-term inflation rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

Trading products CGU

The goodwill of trading products CGU was fully impaired in 2017.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating units was

o 755 % 2R B
wE ()
AR EAH ()
REERALELEN

RPEMBEEL BN 2 ABR0I7F
EEURE -

NEERRSELEMMNBEREEN

as follows: N
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Air dome construction CGU RRERREEFEM 29,138 29,138
Bodewei stadium operation CGU BRRSEEEHEFEN 8,554 8,554
37,692 37,692
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the air dome construction
CGU and Bodewei stadium operation CGU for 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of

goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management determined budgeted gross margin based

on past performance and its expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant unit.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the

financial budget periods are based on the expected long-term inflation rate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of air dome
construction and Bodewei stadium operation, discount rates and growth rates are

consistent with external information sources.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 S Ak B
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS le. HtpEPEE
Patents  Trademark Software Total
=R L LA #act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
3| December 2019 2019 12H31H
At 31 January 2019 R2019F 1 A31H
Cost ZEN 39,533 1,130 925 41,588
Accumulate amortisation Ret#iH (17,807) (509) (385) (18,701)
Net carrying amount fREHE 21,726 621 540 22,887
Cost at | January 2019, net of R2019FIAI1B ZFA
accumulated amortisation bk RTS8 21,726 621 540 22,887
Additions NE - - 101 101
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A5+ H2 8 34 (10,684) (305) (403) (11392)
Exchange realignment bE 5 3 B = = ) @)
At 31 December 2019 M20195 12 /318 11,042 316 231 11,589
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124318
Cost DR 39,533 [,130 1,000 41,663
Accumulate amortisation RET B (28491) (814) (769) (30,074)
Net carrying amount ARTE (B 11,042 316 231 11,589
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B s R AR B A
6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd) 6. HtEFEE (&)
Patents  Trademark Software Total
=R [ LA Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
3| December 2018 2018 12H31H
At | January 2018 R2018F I AI1H
Cost ZEN 39,533 1,130 553 41216
Accumulate amortisation g i (7,123) (204) (293) (7,620)
Net carrying amount fREHE 32410 926 260 33,596
Cost at | January 2018, net of 201851 A IR ZRA -
accumulated amortisation ik 2588 32410 926 260 33596
Additions NE = = 416 416
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A5+ 12 2 §4 (10,684) (305) (112) (11,101
Exchange realignment bE 5 3 B = = (24) (24)
At 31 December 2018 20185 12A31H 21,726 621 540 22,887
At 3| December 2018 20185 12A31H
Cost XA 39,533 [,130 925 41,588
Accumulate amortisation RET B (17,807) (509) (385) (18,701)
Net carrying amount ARTE (B 21,726 621 540 22,887
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 7. R-EHEIRAZRE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Share of net assets DIEFEE 106 166
The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group's associate that TRITHARENE B TEAM S
is not material: NElZ B ER
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Share of the associate’s loss for the year FADIEHE A RIER (60) (96)
Aggregate carrying amount of AEERBERAREZREAE
the Group's investment in the associate 106 166
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

8. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

18. FEMNRE HttERFEREMEE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Prepayments B FIE 3,017 10919
Deposits Be 10,452 9,890
Other receivables Hofth 3R 18 32,892 41819
Prepaid land lease payments R LA E KB - 483
46,361 63,111
Impairment allowance HERE (28,622) (5010)
17,739 58,101
Analysed into DR
Current portion mE D 9,772 35,875
Non-current portion FEREE D 7,967 22226

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other receivables are as

Hit e SRR RERBEREZ SN

follows: D
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
At beginning of year F9) 5,010 22,376
Impairment losses, net (note 6) REEE F8E (Mise) 23,317 (3307)
Amount written off as uncollectible iy RN L EIF O - (13,760)
Exchange realignment BE 5, 8 B 295 (299)
At end of year FR 28,622 5010
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (Cont'd)

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
mainly due to the full impairment of other receivables with an aggregate gross
carrying amount of HK$23,317,000.

The decrease in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2018
was mainly due to the write-off of certain other receivables with an aggregate
gross carrying amount of HK$15524,000 and corresponding loss allowance of

HK$13,760,000.

8.

R

BENRE HtERREREMEE
(4&)

BE019F A3 BIEFEEEREHL
M7 EE AR BRIE #1623317,0008 7T
B B At FE IR R R (B

BZE018FNA3IALFEBEERER
DT EEHRRE#E55240008 T
B T At FE LS R IR M B8 DA B AR B S 4B
B 113,760,000 7T °

EREE X CEEERARA
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

19. CONTRACT ASSETS 9. AREE
31 December 31 December | January
2019 2018 2018
2019F 2018 20185
12A31H 12A31H I1AIA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
Contract assets arising from: BHEERR
Construction services RERS 88,658 100,609 67954
Operation, management and 2B BER
other sports related services Hi g5 HER 811 454 =
89469 101,063 67,954
Impairment A (8,632) (6,443) (2,270)
80,837 94,620 65,684
Analysed into: MR-
Current portion mE D 69,200 77,842 54,094
Non-current portion kP 11,637 16,778 11,590

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from the provision
of construction services and operation, management and other sports related
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
the construction and operation, management and other sports related services.
Included in the contract assets for services are retention receivables, unbilled
trade receivables and goods prepared for specific customers that have been not
accepted by the customers. Upon completion of services rendered and acceptance
by the customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to
trade receivables. The decrease and increase in contract assets in 2019 and 2018,
respectively were the results of the decrease and increase in the ongoing provision

of construction services at the end of each year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

CONTRACT ASSETS (Cont'd) 9. BHEE(H)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at the end of REBEBRKESHLEEENEENTEL
the reporting period is as follows: T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERr TET
Within one year —FR 75,273 87398
After one year —F1& 14,196 13,665
Total contract assets BRNEERE 89,469 101,063

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are as

ANEEREBEREEDWT:

follows:
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
At beginning of year T4 6,443 2270
Impairment losses (note 6) WEEE (Hate) 2,367 447)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% (178) (299)
At end of the year TR 8,632 6,443

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
mainly due to the net increase in the contract assets in relation to several individual
customers in default payments with an aggregate gross carrying amount of

HK$ 11,695,000 and corresponding loss allowance of HK$2,476,000.

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
mainly due to the net increase in the contract assets with an aggregate gross
carrying amount of HK$33,109,000, resulting in a net increase in the loss allowance

of HK$4,472,000.

BZE2019F A3 BLEFEEBEREEE
M EEAREREAE] 16950007 T
HERETEAZPHERNKNEHNE
EE G SRR DA 2 4B B B 1B 452,476,000

BT

HBZE2018F A3 BLEFEEBEREEE
0753 Z i R AR E 42 833,109,000/ 7T
MEHNEEEINEE SREBRERFE
I0FEB4,472,0008 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

CONTRACT ASSETS (Cont’d)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses as well as individually assessed for certain
customers that were with significant default indicators and credit-impaired. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the
trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on the ageing of contract assets for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. The individually impaired contract assets related to
customers that were credit-impaired or in default payments and no receivables is

expected to be recovered.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's

contract assets:

BREE (#)

ZHEBPIERBBEEETHED
MAGtERMEESHE ULKHHEAR
BEENPRLEREERENETE
FETEBNE -FTEANEENTEY
EEBRNBEZRNEARAHE ZRK
TR REARANEENRE ZREFIA
RER—EFEE RNEEMNEREX
DREEARUSERLENETEFA
BIH BN EEBRRHG BEH - &t
ERMTHEMELER ERRRHEE
AERBEAHIESHNERBES
1~ B AR B S AR SR AR TR L BB
AEMAFER - BHREERERL
BRAFNEFABENAAOEED @5
3R (B B TR E A ] W Bl B SR

NTHIEMASEA N AERRAR
ZER:

2019 2018

Impairment of credit losses assessed by EERRAEFEREEERT G
credit risk portfolio using provision matrixes EEBRERE

Expected credit loss rate HHREEEERX 521% 4.23%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(TET) 76,056 98,795
Expected credit losses (HK$000) HHEEER (FET) 3,962 4175
Impairment of credit losses assessed individually BENEZEEBERE
Expected credit loss rate HHREEERX 34.82% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE(TET) 13,413 2,268
Expected credit losses (HK$000) HHEEER (FET) 4,670 2,268
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 0. EBIZEEREREKRRE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Trade and bills receivables B RNFIE R EREE 109,161 81,357
Impairment BB (23,484) (10,285)
85,677 71,072
Trade receivables B2 RWHRE
Non-current e 1,670 377
Current & 84,007 61,568
85,677 61,945
Bills receivable FE W R
Current Vi) - 9,127
85,677 71,072
The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; (i) credit terms of 30 to AEERHE T 2ROEFIEG ()30
90 days; and (iii) the terms of the respective construction contracts. Each customer ZOREER: RiiBEANSTBEZH
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its RET- BEEFERREERE -
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior 5 B 300 8 R W B e YRR IE 4 FE R
management. In the view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade REERERERE T BRI BHE
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant BRoER X RARE 2B HREK
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit RERRELZTIHEFAR HHES
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest- AHNEREERR AEEHEREE
bearing. FRRWGIRGEHRIS A EAEA RS E

BERERE -B2RKFTARTS -

LREA Y EEEMERA T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 20 EZEWRBEREWRE (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, B HRMFER RS BRRES LM
based on the terms set out in the contracts and net of loss allowance, is as follows: ARG ERER RO -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Within | year 3y 60,207 40410
| to 2 years | ZE2F 20,722 13,630
2 to 3 years 283F 3,447 6,142
Over 3 years 3ELE 1,301 1,763
85,677 61,945
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as BHRWHIBNREBEREZFH I
follows: T
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
At beginning of year F17 10,285 4594
Impairment losses (note 6) R &R (HisEs) 13,783 7,786
Amount written off as uncollectible 35 7 AT e /B 3R 1A - (1,632)
Exchange realignment BE 5 3B (584) (463)
At end of year FR 23,484 10,285
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 3| December 2019 was

mainly due to:

() A full impairment against trade receivables in relation to several individual
customers in default payments with an aggregate gross carrying amount of

HK$9,671,000, and

(i) The increase in trade receivables aged within one year with an aggregate
gross carrying amount of HK$22,248,000, resulting in a net increase in the
loss allowance of HK$2,311,000.

The increase in the loss allowance for the year ended 31 December 2018 was

mainly due to:

() A full impairment against trade receivables in relation to several individual
customers in default payments with an aggregate gross carrying amount of

HK$7,743,000, and

(i) The write-off of trade receivables of HK$1,632,000.

20.

R

BZRURERERRE (&)

B ZE2019F 12831 B I FE BRER#EHE
MBEEHR:

() BRMEAAME67I000/ETHAEBE
FTREARFPERNRHE 5 EK
TIEEZERE &

(i) BRMEIAR{E2224800078 TR BRBR 72
—FANE S EKFIBL M &
BB 1B B A L AN F F82,311,0007%8

7T|:o

B ZE2018F 12831 B I FE R R#HE
MBEEHR:

() BRMEAE7743000/ETTHEBE
TEAZEFPHERNTRNE HEK
FEZERE &

(i) B EKFIEMIEI632,000/%

o

\
/

all
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

20.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 20 EZEWRBEREWRE (&)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision REwE B BRRAREEEETRED
matrix to measure expected credit losses as well as individually assessed for certain Ut ERSBEERE YHEEX
customers that were with significant defautt indicators and credit-impaired. The BATRREERENE TEFPETE
provision rates are based on the ageing of groupings of various customer segments BRE - BEE DERABRUERR
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, RENETEFHERRRER 28 RM
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is BENEER E¥RERNHREBH
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of AENEMABTEEE AR RRR
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due REGRHEANEEREZEEER
for more than five years and are not subject to enforcement activity. The individually —RiME BZERESENBSRESR
impaired trade receivables related to customers that were credit-impaired or in FRBAER RN RGBT A T UAM
default payments and no receivables is expected to be recovered. iHe BB EERERENNREFE
B2 BRI 2 RE & 2 AR IR TR EA 5
AN -
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's TERIFFIAEENE ZRWKIENEE
trade receivables: BB
As at 31 December 2019 2019128318
Ageing
ik
Less than

| year | to 2 year 2to3year  Over 3 years Total
Category 5 IFHRT 122 123 IENE i
Impairment of credit losses assessed by REERRESTE

credit risk portfolio REEBRE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 456% 11.04% 28.63% 60.01% 821%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) FREAE (TET) 63,229 23,286 4646 1,348 92,509
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BEGERHE (TER) 2882 2571 1,330 809 7592
Impairment of credit losses assessed AR 2 EEBRAE
individually

Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE - 100% 100% 79.42% 95.44%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) FREAE (TET) = 2,829 10,130 3,693 16,652
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BEGERHE (TER) - 2829 10,130 2933 15,892
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR8P
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 20 EZERWRBEREWRE (&)
As at 3| December 2018 720184 12A31H
Ageing
B
Less than
| year | to 2 year 2to3year  Over3years Total
Category 55 IELT EyE3 123 3ENE @it
Impairment of credit losses assessed by REERBASTMEL
credit risk portfolio FEBBRE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 139% 5.00% 10.00% 2450% 394%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REARE(TAL) 4098 14347 6824 2335 64487
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEEEE(TAT) 571 717 682 572 254
Impairment of credit losses assessed @Rtz EEBERRE
individually
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE - 100% 100% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) REAE (THT) - 4555 569 2619 7743
Expected credit losses (HK$000) BHEERE(TAT) - 4555 569 2619 7743
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

21. DEFERRED TAX 2. EEHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows: EEREEBRAEZEEMT
Deferred tax liabilities: EEHRARRE:
2019 2019%
Fair value
adjustments
Fair value of equity
adjustments investments
arising from at fair value
acquisition through
of subsidiaries profit or loss Total
BRAAEE
kg FtEEH2H
Loy PN sTABEZ
Bz BREREZ
AREEAE AAEERE #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FTERT THERT
At | January 2019 20191 A18 3,352 - 3,352
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FRRBHEAMNK,/
profit or loss during the year (5t N) ZEEF B
(note 10) (HiE10) (1,649) 742 (907)
Exchange realignment BE 5,58 B - (13) (13)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 2019128318 2
3| December 2019 ELEHAAERE 1,703 729 2,432
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21.

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

2. EIERIE (F)

Deferred tax assets: BEEMIBEE
2019 2019%F
Fair value  Depreciation Deferred
adjustments  allowance in revenue
arising excess of and  Impairment
from related deferred  of financial Lease Accrued
FVOCI  depreciation costs assets liabilities  purchases Others Total
RAAERE
AR
BEHITA
Hit2E
WHEEZ ich
NMEE HEAEz BEZUAR LREE
#E  FERE EEAX AE HERE EHEE Hit @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TERL TERT TERL TR TERL TR
At | January 2019 R019F1 718 1315 73l 3115 2,742 - - - 7903
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FRRBEHAR ZELEHE
loss during the year (note 10) (FizEI0) - 592 1352 2752 175 5016 429 10316
Deferred tax charged to other FERFAEMRERGZ
comprehensive income BEERE
during the year (238) - - - - - - (238)
Exchange realignment X AR - (26) (90) (97) 3 (88) (6) (310)
Gross deferred tax assets R2019F 1283182
at 31 December 2019 EEHAEERR 1077 1297 4317 5,397 " 4928 oK 17671
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

21 EIERIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities: BRERBERE:
2018 20184
Fair value Depreciation
adjustments allowance in
arising from excess of
acquisition of related
subsidiaries depreciation Total
e B Bt 8 A it
EEZ HEHTE
DRAEEAR ZIMERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FAET
At 31 December 2017 FR2017F12A31H 8,334 196 8,530
Deferred tax credited to FARBHRANEFTAZ
profit or loss during the year ERERTE (4,982) (196) (5,178)
Gross deferred tax liabilities 720185 128318 2
at 3| December 2018 RIEHIBAGRRE 3352 - 3,352
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 20 EEBE ()
Deferred tax assets: BEEMIBEE
2018 20185
Fairvalue  Depreciation Impairment
adjustments allowance in of contract
arising excess of Deferred assets and
from related revenue and trade
FVOd depreciation  deferred costs receivables Total
BRAAGE
iEEHE
AR 2E ithy ANEER
BaEL? BANE BEUAR ZHEWGE
NABERE ZHERR i N WIE @zt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL TATL TAL TR
At | January 2018 R20I8F1 AR - 769 1,240 = 2,009
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRRBRAFIA/
profit or loss during the year () 2 BERA (38) (39) 1,967 2,585 4476
Deferred tax credited to FERFAEMEZEKE
other comprehensive income EER A
during the year 1,626 - - - 1,626
Exchange realignment X A% = = on (117) (208)
Gross deferred tax assets M0I8F12A31B 2
at 31 December 2018 EXHAAERE 1,588 7 3116 2468 7903

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$6,268,000 (2018: nil) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of HK$ 115,905,000 (2018: HK$79,762,000) that will expire in one to five years for

offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that either have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised, or are not expected to generate taxable profits in the foreseeable

future to utilise the tax losses due to changes in operation.

AEEEEBEF M IERE 186,268,000
AT (20185 : &) A PR BA PR DASK 8H 2
ERBEENARIKNRRERTOER
RSB B A 7hE 4 ] AR SR
RIER T H| 2 B IEE1R | 15,905,000
7t (2018%F : 79,762,000 7T ) I #§ 1A —
ERFHH-

ARZEEEBE - BRERAFEERS
BRARRIAAEEISAREBE
BHERBEMN 2 MBAREL A
RESYHMBHIENATRRRELE
A M ABRRIBRR MR ZF
BRERETHALE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

21. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd) 20 EEBE ()
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: INTIEE HENELEREEEY RE
o

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FET

Tax losses BEBE 122,173 79,762

Deductible temporary differences MR EREH 4,160 633

126,333 80,395
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 0% withholding tax is levied REPBECEMEHE RABEAHK
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises M ZINERERINEIREETRANKRE
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from | January 2008 FEZI0%E) B R R HTEMB - ZHEB
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may 20084F | A | B #8 A 3 I 38 A pA20074F
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of RASIBZEMEERBMANDE AR
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.The Group is A EINEIREEEREERD
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries ERRTURIGE - BRI SR E R A TEMH
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from | January 2008. Tt 3 o 2N [ 38 P 5 3 5% 38 10%

B It - AN 55 B 78 B 7E A B b B S A %
ZHB ARG E2008E | AIBIELE
TR B ERRTEINR -

At 31 December 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes R2019FE1A3IH  BELAEERF
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding B PRy P A S BT B 2 R ZB AN TR OB Y
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion 7K B [B] 22 7] F& 1+ 0 T8 40 3 B SRR AE B
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries wil H-ARAEERR ZEMBRARN
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2019, there was Al RARRAP KA 85 s Fll - 120196
no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2018: nil) for taxes that would be AR BERKEBWB LR 2k
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no B 0] 2 M| 2 FE A A T 1 28 A (R AR
liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted due to the availability of BRELERIEARE (2018F &) -}t )
double taxation relief. REERVEE WA FEEEL K

SEBANBEIRBERERRG

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by ARAMERREER ST G 5| BT
the Company to its shareholders. FRSTiER -

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
1 98 ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 7 3R R MY &
22. INVENTORIES 2 BFE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Raw materials R 7,479 2,504
Work in progress Exm - 2,328
Finished goods 2K 136 =
7,615 4832

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 2.
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BAREEFEAESEHFALMEE
KENEMEE BRAAEEFEAR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS B ABBNEREE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Debt investments at fair value through BAnEESEREZEHHA
other comprehensive income At 2EE 2 RIFRA
Current & 29,098 20280
Non-current R 67,576 57,378
96,674 77,658
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAnEESEBAZEH AR
Current — wealth management products MBI Em 72,056 74,013
Non-current — an equity investment R —BRARE 25,203 —
97,259 74013

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont’d)

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were listed
corporate bond investments. They were classified as financial assets at FVOCI as
their contractual cash flow are solely payments of principle and interest on the
principal amount outstanding and they were held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. During
the year, the investment income recognised in profit or loss and the fair value loss
recognised in other comprehensive income or loss amounted to HK$8,069,000
(2018: HK$6,581,000) and HK$ 1,350,000 (2018: HK$9,304,000), respectively.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included wealth management
products which were issued by major banks in Mainland China. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVPL as their contractual cash flow are
not solely payments of principle and interest. During the year, the investment income
arising from wealth management products recognised in profit or loss amounted to

HK$3,322,000 (2018: HK$4,01 1,000).

The Group's equity investment represent an equity investment trading on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotation Company in the PRC and was classified
as financial assets at FVPL as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. During the year, the investment
return arising from the changes in fair value of the equity investment recognised in

profit or loss amounted to HK$2,968,000 (2018: nil).
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2.

BOABESEEHSEHIAHMEE
WRMEMEE RANEEFEER
BEABRNSRMEE (£)
BRARBEFEEHZHTALMS
Hl=ENeREER LTARBESR
B ZEREDHNENRENEER
AeRMKREERASF SARLEE
BRERANFEERERBENES
BARE mMoBAERAABEFER
HEHTALMEARENEREE-
FARBREBRNRERARNE
MmEERRRERNDABEEED
711 78,069,0007%8 7T (2018%F : 6,581,000
7T ) }.1,350,0007% 7T (20184F : 9,304,000
BT °

BANEBEFEAEZHTABENE
MEEREPENMNEBRTEITHIE
MEMR ZEZeREERNENRLR
BUHFEREE RFIERMK  magE 5D
BREAAEBEFEEEEHT AR
HHEREE -FA REBRERBERL
IR B EE i PSR B WA /83,322,000 7T
(2018%F :4011,000%7T) °

AEENRAREERTEZEF /R
ERNEBREREZEIRARETHE
BEANBENEEEZEFAERE
MeRMEE AATNEETERERR
Ht2EREERAABERESIE
B-FR REZBERNREARERAR
BEZEEFREDRA2968000/% T
(2018%F : &) ©



24.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK BALANCES

R

RRFBIFRRRERBITEER

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Cash and bank balances R KRTTER 128,657 120357
Restricted bank deposits R HIRITER 5,584 1415
134,241 121,772

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$!110,786,000 (2018:
HK$90,922,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The Group's restricted bank deposits are used for the performance guarantee in

relation to certain purchase contracts.

RFEEHR AEEAARE (TA
REDAENRESRRTERRD
110,786,000/ 7T (20184 : 90,922,000/
T ARB A mABRKEME
oM REFENM GMNEERE
RO & (EE -EERNEFTER
E) AREAEBERELEINESR
BZRITHARBLAKAMBE

RTRERBEFARTESNEHE
ZEEH R BREA B  RITEHR I F N
R HE N sk A EEAIRTT

AEBOXRHBIFHIANEBR
BENMENRE -

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES B EEZERGTERENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting REBEEHAR REZEZADHETES
period, based on the invoice date or issue date, is as follows: {EH IV 5 8 1 30IE e N RIR A BR iR
AT :

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TET

Within | month | A AR 55,322 27,042

| to 2 months | 228 A 25,288 18,199

2 t0 3 months 2231 A 7718 5018

Over 3 months AR E 19,168 15,193

107,496 65452
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The trade payable are EIRNTERENZER TR &
normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days upon receipts of suppliers’ invoices, SENTIE—RARNERHERERE
while bills payable are normally settled on terms of 180 days upon issuance of bills. 0E0H AR MERNZER—RER

BITRRRI0F AR -
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26.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

% HittENRUERETER

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
P E TR THET
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) 7,022 5203
Deposits received Blize 1,020 1,125
Other payables H At < 3IA (b) 32,804 14,047
Accruals JEEtE R 29,196 26496
Total HBEt 70,042 46,871
Notes: P&
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BHEEFRET:
31 December 31 December | January
2019 2018 2018
20196 20184 2018
12A31H 12A31H I1AIB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL
Short-term advances received from customers B E P IZEIE
Air dome construction services RIBZERS 3817 797 =
Operation and management services and 2B N EERESIAK
other sports and entertainment services HinEE B RIREIRTS 2,898 4,303 =
Sales of goods HEEm 307 103 62
Total contract liabilties ARAERSE 7022 5203 62
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver goods and render EHNEREERINER RERE
air dome construction and operation and management services. The increase in BERG kA E R EERIEKER S
contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances HIBR - 2019 A NBEEMHEE
received from customers in relation to the provision of air dome construction services AR FERBRERERERBAEP
at the end of the year. The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the WERH) K2 BR8N - 2018F & 40 A
increase in short-term advances received from customers in relation to the provision BENEZHRNFRBRHREER
of operation and management services and other sports and entertainment services EERBIAREMER RIRE RIS M
at the end of the year. B P IR Y A2 BRI 0
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one year. () HtESRENGTE FHERRA—

Fo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 7. FIRBRITREAMER
31 December 2019 20195 12831 H
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000
BRA=R
(%) 3 TR
Current BN ER
Bank loans-unsecured RITER—EEITP 2020
5.22 20205 5,572
Bank loans-unsecured RITER—EER 2020
LPR-0.25 20205 [1,144
Bank loans-secured ROIER-—FER 2020
LPR+0.915 20205 12,816
Other borrowings-unsecured* Hh i 50— AR AR On demand
7 BREXR 3,057
Other borrowings-unsecured** HoAth i 5K — AR e 2020
435 2020 891
33,480
Non-current FRE
Bank loans-secured RITER—FER 2021-2023
LPR+0.915 2021 F £2023F 22,600
56,080
2019
HK$'000
THERT
Analysed into: MR-
Bank loans repayable: FEBERITER:
Within one year —FR 29,532
After one year —Fi& 22,600
52,132
Other borrowings repayable: JEBEHMER:
Within one year or on demand —FARARREK 3,948
56,080
* The balance represents a loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of * AR TE $§%\*FE'EJ MEBARZIF
the Group. ERIRRER 2 BER -

* REBREATHEEFE=TERCE

o
TA°

*t  The balance represents a loan from an unrelated third party.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 7. FTERTREAMENR (&)
31 December 2018 2018 12H31H
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRRAM =
(%) El 5 TET
Current B 5
Bank loans — unsecured RITER— E|IER 2019
522-6.09 20194 3912
Other borrowings — unsecured H A fE 50— MK A on demand
7 BREX 1,032
4,944
2018
HK$'000
T
Analysed into: AR
Bank loans repayable: EEERITERK:
Within one year —FR 3912
Other borrowings repayable: JEBERMBER:
On demand BREX 1,032
4944

Notes: P -

(@)  Asat 3| December 2019, the unsecured bank loans of approximately HK$ 16,716,000 (@ M2019F 128318 BERBITER
(2018: nil) were guaranteed by unrelated third parties. #116,716,0007% 7T (2018%F : &) 2 M

BRBE=FER-

(b)  The Group's secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period were secured b)) AEERBREARZBEEMARITE
by mortgages over the Group's right-of-use assets, buildings and construction in FHARENERESE BEFRE
process, which had an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of BIR(RHREMRREAERLD
approximately HK$77,847,000. 77,847,000/ 7T ) IS H 1

()  Allof the Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB. © AEEMERFHAAREE-

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B s R AR B A
28. LOAN FROM A RELATED PARTY 8 EELER
The loan from a related party at 31 December 2018 was interest-bearing at a rate 20185 12431 BB 7 EFIREHE
of 12% per annum. 12%T 8. o
The principal and corresponding interest payable of the loan were fully settled ERNEFARE RIEREAN S ERENEE
during the year. 185 o
29. SHARE CAPITAL 9. B
Shares gvi)
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Authorised: ETE
4,000,000,000 (2018:4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each (20184F : 4,000,000,0008% )
B EE0.0057 7T A & @Ak 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BRETNBREER
1,302,019,000 (2018: 1,306,430,400) 1,302,019,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each (20184F : 1306,430,4008% )
FIREE0.0057% TT Y K BAR 6,510 6,532

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd) 9. BRE(#F)
Shares (Cont d) B (&)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: ARG AEBHENT
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
B#1T
RO A B A<
HK$'000
TET
At | January 2018 201851 A IR 296,792,900 6484
Exercise of share options (note (a)) 1T EERRRE (P35 () 9,637,500 48
At 3| December 2018 and | January 2019 720185 12A31B R2019F 1 A 1R 1,306,430,400 6,532
Share options exercised (note (a)) BITEERE (@) 3,338,600 17
Shares repurchased and cancelled (note (b)) B R EkG (MEb)) (7,750,000) (39)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12A31 8 1,302,019,000 6510
Notes: P -
(@)  The subscription rights attaching to 3,338,600 (2018: 9,637,500) share options were ()  3,338,60017 (2018 : 9,637,50017 )
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.764 per share (note 30), resulting in the ERENSHOZABEELRABESR
issue of 3,338,600 (2018: 9,637,500) shares for a total cash consideration, before 076478 TLELTF - B 173,338,600
expenses, of approximately HK$2,551,000 (2018: HK$7,363,000). An amount of % (20184 : 9,637,500/% ) f% 15 * 35 &
approximately HK$ 1,658,000 (2018: HK$4,512,000) was transferred from the share- BRME (R F 2 AT) £9782,551,000
based payment reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise of the share 78 7T (20184 : 7,363,000 7T ) - A
options. #91,658,0007% 7T, (20184F : 4,512,000/

TU) B RITER B U BE
RONFERERERMEER-

(b)  The Company purchased 7,750,000 of its shares on the Stock Exchange for a total (b) ARAEABREL33180007 T IEE
consideration of approximately HK$3,318,000. The purchased shares were cancelled A2 P 51 7,750,000 i £ © £ B 8]
during the year. R EFE NS o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company's directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, the Company's shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder in the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 3 December 201 | and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
| 2-month period is limited to % of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'

approval in a general meeting,

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are

subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 2| days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors
and commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from the date of offer of the share options or the

expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier:

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

208 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

30.

BiREE

APRIREREE ([58]]) 5
ERHREREM THARE %@&%
{EH ERIE A ERBHE 5T EIR
M/A%a%KQTM§$<@%ﬁ¢
FRTESE) AEEEMES  ~5E
EmREHER AEEXP KA
AR AR BT 2 AR IR AR AR
R8I0 1F12A3B AR BRIE
SERUESEE] BRIKBEZBRI0F
NA R o

R IR AR 2 RITE R R
ZEBHERTEBEEEREAT
PMEARTB 1R B AT AR 4D 230% ° IMESR]
M A B RBAHBRTRAERS
BEZBIEN TRTRSRNEE
AARRBREMERD T 2 1%
AR o X TR B PR ] 2 (T ) E A B ik
BHURERRNBRAEG L4 -

BTFARRES FTETHRABREE
PR BR S 1R S B A+ 2 R AR IR AS
BLEMTESSRBE IO RE
A2 A B W T ARAREERR
FEVFATESTHREEMBEAL
2 AE o] B AR R AR A R R E ] B R
BEITIRMN 20.1% R IER R H B B
REIRMEREE 2 #E# 355000000
BT AIAKRENIRREAE EEx4t
JE

BB EHTRE Y B Bkt
VENAREALN EERES KIS
T T AR - BRI 1765
PEEEEE TN EZERBHE%
i - R FER RS 4 B et
RFSHAERE SR UREEA
) .



30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) 0. ERESHE (F)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors but may not be BREZTEERESET ETEFE
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares RUATZEBEE : (AR AR NER
on the date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing BEH B BER A WHE R4
price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the RAROHREEZHNHBRAIAERSA
date of offer. TR R P 2 IR (B
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at BRI N TR A AR B SR
shareholders” meetings. RREREZERN-
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: ATRERABREREMARITRZER
1
2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
e 39 N1
THEE BREA TEE  BREHRE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BREBT F& BRAET T
At | January RIAIA 0.764 40,364 0.764 50,001
Exercised during the year FRETE 0.764 (3,339) 0764 (9,637)
At 31 December RI12A318 0.764 37,025 0.764 40,364
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options FRTEEREES BOMETHRE
exercised during the year was HK$2.36 per share (2018: HK$2.96 per share). BER236E T (20185F : BIR2.96%
e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The exercise price and exercise period of the share options outstanding as at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

0. FRRESTE ()
RBERR  ARITEBRE 2 TEE
RATERIT

2019
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TREE" T
’000 HK$
per share
F& ZRET
note
37,025 0.764 Bt &t
2018
Number of options Exercise price® Exercise period
BREHE 1TEE* T H
‘000 HK$
per share
T BB
note
40,364 0.764 k3
e The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or * Rz TR A e AR EITA

bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

Note:

First 30% of the options granted was vested in one year from 8 April 2016, second 40% of the
options granted was vested in two years from 8 April 2016 and remaining 30% of the options
granted was vested in three years from 8 April 2016. Upon the lapse of the vesting period, the

share options are exercisable until 7 April 2026.
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30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

In respect of share options granted in prior years, the Group recognised a share
option expense of approximately HK$765,000 (2018: HK$4,291,000) during the
year ended 3| December 2019.

The 3,338,600 share options exercised during the vyear resufted in the issue of
3,338,600 ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of approximately
HK$17,000 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in note 29 to the financial

statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 37,025,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
37,025,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$ 185,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 37,025,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately

2.84% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

30.

R

BiRETE (F)
REBZE2019FNA3IBILFE £A5E
FhAB 1 F R IR D RO RS AR A T SR A AR A
A 2 £765,0007% 7T (2018%F : 4,291,000
BIT) o

FRTT{53,338,60017 BB R B ER 21T
3,338,600k 28 22 &) & i AR K # AR AR 4
17,0008 7T (HIBREITRXAL) - E—H
B M BRI o

REEBHR AQGRRENEA
37,025,00017 BB AR 12 R THE < IRIBALR
ARITERGERE  BEITERRTED
B2 AR 28 B85 1737,025,0000 A8 A )
BN AR & B8 7R 7K 49185,0007 7T
(HIBR TR AL

Rt EZEMBREAH RAAFR
I8 51 8 £ 5137,025,00017 15 & 17 18 38 A%
BERARARZANEBRTRON
2.84% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 80 to 81 of the financial statements.
(@)  Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents (i) the differences between the considerations
of equity transactions and the corresponding carrying amounts of non-
controlling interests; and (i) the differences between the nominal amount
of share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of share
capital of the then subsidiaries transferred to the Company pursuant to the

reorganisation of the Group that took place in 201 |.
(b)  Statutory and legal reserves

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required
to allocate 10% of their net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50%
of their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses or
to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is

maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies' registered capital.

(c)  Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised or transferred to accumulated losses should the

related options expire.
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32.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON- 32

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The Group's subsidiary, Swift Knight Limited*, together with its subsidiaries have

material non-controlling interests, detail of which are set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

BEEXFEREZNEIHEHELD
&

A& E KB A FISwift Knight Limited*i&
REMNBARERENFERES A
BEFFIEESIT :

2019 2018
Percentage of equity interests held by FEERRIE R P FR IR B 2 L (%)
non-controlling interests (%) 20% 20%
Loss for the year allocated to DB EFERERD
non-controlling interests (HK$'000) FNEER(TET) (2,493) (4.941)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests ~ FEIE IRz N R & AR
at the end of the reporting period (HK$'000) REt#EeR (TET) 109,543 114,212

LRRE X EEEEERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

32.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Cont’d)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of Swift Knight

Limited and its subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

32 BREAFERESNSIBENER
8 (&)
TRIIRSwift Knight Limited 5 £ Bt B 2
AN ERE BB ARE

eliminations: TR R RIREHATHN &5 :

2019 2018

HK$000 HK$'000

TR FAET

Revenue Wiz 162,169 133,303
Total cost and expenses BRARAX (171,197) (154,082)
Loss for the year FAEE (9,028) (20,779)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEBRER (10,073) (23,967)
Current assets MENEE 454,468 360,797
Non-current assets ERBEE 186,670 122,373
Current liabilities mBEE (535,617) (399,537)
Non-current liabilities FREERE (35,313) (3,352)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities RETEHHNE,/ (A REREFE 62,607 (11,155)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities RERBRSE/ (MRA)REREFHE (50,185) 13,975
Net cash flows from financing activities REEBMBRENEFE 44,755 4,061
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEEREB  XE T (908) (1,965)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReFEMEMTE 56,269 4916

& Swift Knight Limited is an investment holding company which indirectly holds 51.66%

equity interest in MetaSpace which, together with its subsidiaries, are principally

engaged in the air dome-related business and sports stadium operation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. HEMEAF
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEBEFE:
Investment properties (note |3) REME (MHEE13) 22,263 =
Trade receivables B o ERIE - I3
Prepayments, other receivables and FERTFRIA oA e CFRIR K
other assets Hith g - 10,719
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER - 615
Trade payables B HENFIR - (239)
Other payables and accruals Hih AR RERTE A (44) (8774)
Lease liabilities (note 14) HESE (ME14) (21,323) —
Tax payable e TR - (9,837)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBERE - (196)
Non-controlling interests RS 212 (68)
1,108 (7,767)
Exchange fluctuation reserves BE XX BN - (403)
- (8,170)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARWE, (BE) (1,108) 8,170
Satisfied by: ERA:
Cash Re - =

LREA Y EEEMERA T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal

of subsidiaries is as follows:

3. HEWEAR(A)
FALEMBRARNRENAEEEY
HORAFBAMTAT -

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTAT
Cash consideration RerE - -
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of B EHERS RIRITHER - (615)
Cash consideration of prior year's disposals received FAMMBAFEHE 2 RESRE
during the year 7,132 15,928
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of Gt EEMB AR ZHE K
the disposal of subsidiaries ReEBYMRAFE 7,132 15313

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@)  Major non-cash transactions
During the year; the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of RMB$4,748,000 and RMB$4,748,000, respectively, in respect

of lease arrangements for buildings (2018: nil).
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34.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Cont’d)

R

M HETERERMEE (F)

b) BMEEHELNRELD

2019 2019
Other Interest-bearing
payables bank and
and other Lease Loan from
accruals borrowings liabilities  a related party
HttENRE  SHEROR
REER HtfE & HERE BHEIER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET TAET
At 31 December 2018 20185124318 46,871 4,944 - 1228
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RnEEHMBRSER
FI6F T E = - 39,505 -
At | January 2019 (restated) 0191 A 18 (KE5) 46,871 4944 39,505 1228
Changes from financing cash flows RERERES (1,536) 51,875 (3478) (1,296)
New leases HHE = = 4,748 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE KB LA
(note 33) (PBaE33) (44) — (21323) ~
Foreign exchange movement INEZ B = (739) (1,009) 21
Interest expense MERX 1,619 = 3492 47
Increase arising from operatingand 48 & RIZ & EH
investing activities FRSIEm 3132 — ~ =
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 70,042 56,080 21935 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 34

(Cont’d)

(b)  Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Cont d)

FeRERERME (&)

b) METHELNEELE (F)

2018 2018

Interest-bearing
bank and other Loan from
borrowings a related party

FTRBITR
H o & BB L &N
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET
At | January 2018 M20I18E I A1 H = =
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREZH 4937 1,139
Interest expense FMBERAX 7 89
At 31 December 2018 R20I8F12A31H 4944 1228

(c)  Total cash outflow for leases:

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is as

(0 HERSRLAH:

AABRERERNEERER

follows: mEmT
2019
HK$'000
TERT
Within operating activities R EE P 636
Within financing activities BMEEEF 3,478
4,114

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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35.

36.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

36.

(@)  The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

R

g

\

EA

=

i}

RBEHR AREY BEEFMEARA
2|

@ AEEBRSHREHROEREE
m:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Contracted, but not provided for: EETA B KRB
Assets under construction EEEE 2,531 135914

(b)  Operating lease commitments as at 3| December 2018

The Group leased certain of its buildings under operating lease arrangements.

Leases for properties were negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty

years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) M2018F 12831 B 2 BEHER

AEERBELLHELHRR
ETEF SEFHEHENT—Z
—t+F-

20I18F 128318 REBIRE
AR EHER T 5 H
BB R R R AR S R ez m
T

2018
HK$'000
THT

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years

—ER
E_ZERFAN(RREEERF)
FF%

7,245
25,853
31,366

64,464

ERMEX L EEEMERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BHMAERZ
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the RREVBRRAMESNFR RS
Group had the following transactions with related parties: Oh REERER T ETIATR S
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiERr TET
Loan from a director (note 28) RE—BEFENER (Hz28) - [,139
Interest expenses to a director R—REEX N EFAX 47 100
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEETETRABEHM:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TET
Short-term employee benefits BHIEEFH 2,330 2,386
Equity-settled share option expense PR 1 4 B R AR AE T 2 244 4291
Post-employment benefits & B BB AR A 141 44
2,715 6,721
Further details of the directors” and the chief executive's emoluments are included EHREERIETHAEME 2 E—F
in note 8 to the financial statements. A B R B SRR P 518 o
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38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Financial assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets

B SRMIAEHR

R

FEReRMTARREMR 2 REES
P Ul

2019

ETHEE

Financial assets

at fair value at fair value
through through other
profit or loss  comprehensive
— designated as income Financial
such upon initial — debt assets at
recognition investments ~ amortised cost Total
BRAREE BRAREE
FTEEESEH EEHEH
BPNF HPN:Y
ZEMEE 2EWE 'S ¥
-“BRERAE ZEMEE A&
EHEBRERE -BBRE ZERMEE gt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET TET TET TET
Financial assets at FVPL wAnEEFER
HEBABRZ
TREE 97,259 - - 97,259
Financial assets at FVOC| wAnEEFER
HEHHAHM
PEBHEZCREE - 96,674 - 96,674
Trade receivables BHRNGE - - 85,677 85,677
Contract assets BHEBE - - 80,837 80,837
Financial assets included STABRHE:
in prepayments, H it FE U TR IE ]2
other receivables and HhBENSREE
other assets - - 14,494 14,494
Restricted bank deposits XBHRTER - - 5,584 5,584
Cash and bank balances Be RRITHEER - - 128,657 128,657
97,259 96,674 315,249 509,182
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d) B ERMIEER(F)
2019 (Cont'd) 20195 (#)
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost THEE-ZREE LT EZ AR
HK$'000
THET
Trade and bills payables B HRNRIERENRE 107,496
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SPARMENREREGERzERMAE 33,824
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRERITRAEMBER 56,080
Lease liabilities MEaE 21,935
219,335
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

2018

Financial assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

Financial assets

8. SRTIEER (&)

20184

THEE

Financial assets

at fair value at fair value
through through other
profit orloss ~ comprehensive
— designated as income Financial
such upon initial — debt assets at
recognition investments amortised cost Total
BRRANEE BRAREBE
STERHEE FERHE
TABR A Eft
LEREE 2ERE R
—BRERE LEREE ARG E
fEL AR —-BBRE ZEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TET
Financial assets at FVPL wmAnEEFER
HEH ARG L
TRMEE 74013 - - 74013
Debt investments at FVOCI wmAnEEFER
HEP AHMEZE
Wz BEBRE - 77658 - 77658
Trade and bills receivables EL TGN LIES - 9,127 61,945 71072
Contract assets BNEE = - 94,620 94,620
Financial assets included FTABRHE
in prepayments, H i YR IR
other receivables and HthEE eREE
other assets - - 46,348 46,348
Restricted bank deposits B A RITER - - 1415 1415
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHER - - 120,357 120,357
74013 86,785 324,685 485,483
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d) B ERMIEER(F)
2018 (Contd) 20185 (&)

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost TREE-HEHKAGTEC 2 HE R

HK$'000

FAT

Trade and bills payables B HRNRIERENRE 65,452

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals FAREMENRERESERAZ AR 6,684

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRERITRAEMBER G

Loan from a related party B B 1,228

78,308
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other

than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair value, are as

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

39.

ERMTAZAABERAAEBERER

AEEzeMIAZREBRARE
E(EEREEEAABEAEREER

follows: SN EFIT
Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET FERT TET
Financial assets TREE
Debt investments at fair value BARBENER
through other comprehensive HEBAEMEE
income Wzt 2 EHHE 96,674 77,658 96,674 77,658
Financial assets at fair value BARBENER
through profit or loss HEFT ARG
TREE 97,259 74013 97,259 74013
Bills receivable e - 9,127 - 9,127
Financial assets included in AR RIE
prepayments, other receivables  F At FEUFIA K
and other assets, HithEEZ REE
non-current portion FERBE D 901 12,827 703 11,851
Trade receivables, B 5 EWRIA
non-current portion FRBEH 1,670 377 1,539 353
Contract assets, BRNEE
non-current portion FERBE S 11,637 16,778 1,488 16,523
208,141 190,780 207,623 189,525
Financial liabilities cREeE
Interest-bearing bank and AT BERTT RE MR
other borrowings 56,080 4,944 56,080 4969
Loan from a related party B A BN - 1228 - 1,275
56,080 6,172 56,080 6,244
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances, restricted
bank deposits, the current portion of trade and bills receivables, contract assets and
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade
and bills payables and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of

these instruments.

The Group's chief financial officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each

reporting date, the valuation is approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of trade receivables, contract assets
and financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and loan from a related party have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and loan from a related party as at 31

December 2019 were assessed to be insignificant.
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The fair values of listed debt instruments are based on quoted market prices. The
fair values of redeemable wealth management products included in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are based on their quoted market prices. The
fair value of an equity investment included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss has been estimated using a market approach through the use of
comparable companies’ market multiples. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry and to calculate
an appropriate price multiple, that is, enterprise value to research and development
expenses (“EV/R&D") multiple to calculate the enterprise value of the target
enterprise. The enterprise value was adjusted by the surplus, non-operating assets
and excess liabilities to arrive an equity value of the target enterprise, which was
then discounted by consideration of lack of liquidity compared to the comparable
companies based on investment-specific facts and circumstances. The directors
believe that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation technique, which is
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change
in fair values, which is recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that it was the

most appropriate value at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of wealth management products with fixed maturity dates included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have been determined by income
approach mainly based on the spot yield curves of China AAA corporate bonds
with the corresponding observable yields, the implied liquidity spread of the prices
on the issue dates and the recoverable amounts of investments of identical or similar

assets in active markets.

39.

R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39.

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2019:

ERMIACZAABERAABEER
(4)
R2019F12A3I0 ¢MEERKED
B ER T A B R E A B Z 0
T

Value of
Significant significant
Valuation unobservable unobservable Sensitivity of fair
technique inputs inputs value to the inputs
EXFABE EXFAEE
B 5l WARE BABBEE ANREEHBABBNRRBE
Equity investment Valuation Average EV/R&D 112 5%
multiples multiple of peers increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/ decrease in
fair value by HK$ 1,307,000
BARE (RN [f 3% F IEVIRDE BB M, R 5% B
AABEEM, A 1,307,000/8 7T
Discount for lack of 16% 1%
liquidity increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/ increase in fair value
by HK$305,000
RZRBIESTE B m, R 1% B

The discount for lack of liquidity represents the amounts of premiums and discounts
determined by the Group that market participants would take into account when

pricing the investment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 9. EMIEZAARBERAAEBEER

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) (&)

Fair value hierarchy DRBEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's TRIFRAEEERITA 2 AREER
financial instruments: EER:

Assets measured at fair value: BAABEIAEZEE:

As at 31 December 2019 201912831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTERETAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level ) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RER EATEE BERAT
miENERE BARE BEGARE

(B18) ($28) ($3E) Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Debt investments at FVOCI RAnEBENZR
HEHTAHMZAE
W2 EREE 96,674 = = 96,674
Financial assets at FVPL RANBEA=ZR
HEHi ABmm
EREE 26,303 45,753 25203 97,259
122977 45753 25203 193,933
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Assets measured at fair value: (Cont d)

As at 31 December 2018

39.

SRMTAZAABERAABERER
(%)

AREERER (&)

BAREBEIEZEE: (&)

720185128318

Fair value measurement using

ERNTRIETRAREEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER BEARAUBE EAMTER
ISR RE BARE AR
(BIE) (82E) (£3E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET TET
Debt investments at FVOC BARBENER
HEFFARMEE
Wzt 2 EHHRE 77,658 - - 77,658
Financial assets at FVPL BEARBENER
HEET ABEN
TREE - 74013 - 74013
Bills receivable EREE - 9,127 - 9,127
77,658 83,140 - 160,798
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as FREIEANBENENESHNOT
follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TET
Equity investment at FVPL: BERARBEFER
HEBAABRZIRAKRE
At | January RIAIB - =
Purchases BE 22,202 -
Amount recognised in other income included SFABRARN
in profit or loss Hit Rz &8 2,968 -
Exchange realignment BE 5 3 B 33 -
At 31 December RI2A31H 25,203 =

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 3|

December 2019 and 3| December 2018.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level

I and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and

financial liabilities (2018: nil).

M2019F 128318 K20I185F 128318

AEBVETMRARNBEAEZER
aE-

FR SRHEENRSRABERIER
EEREHEER A REENE T
A S E3E (20185 &) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M AL

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39.

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Assets for which fair value are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2019

(%)
AREERER (&)

ERBLALEBEZEE:

2019128318

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTERETOABENE

ERMIAZAABERAABERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level ) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RNER EXTER BEARA
mENRE BABE EEHANE
(%158) (%258) (%83/8) #act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Financial assets included in AR RIE
prepayments, other receivables H e jE Y RIE K
and other assets, HiWEEZ eREE
non-current portion FRBEHH = 703 = 703
Trade receivables, B 5 EWRIA
non-current portion FERBED - 1,539 = 1,539
Contract assets, BREE
non-current portion R D = 1,448 = 11,448
- 13,690 - 13,690
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39.

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

Assets for which fair value are disclosed: (Cont'd)

As at 3| December 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

SRMITAZAABERAABERER
(%)

DREEER (&)
ERBARBEZEE. (&)
720185128318

Fair value measurement using
BRI TRERITAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER  EAAEE BEATAEE
M5 HRE BWABE AR
(%11E) (%2/8) (%3E) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FAET FAT
Financial assets included in FTATRRHKIE
prepayments, other receivables H e jE Y RIE K
and other assets, HithEEZ REE
non-current portion FREHTH = 1,851 = 11,851
Trade receivables, B 2 EWHIA
non-current portion FERBED - 353 - 353
Contract assets, BREE
non-current portion R D - 16,523 - 16,523
- 28,727 - 28,727
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 9. EMIEZAARBERAAEBEER

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) (4)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) DREEEBR (F)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERELAABEZERE:
As at 31 December 2019 201912831 H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTERETOABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level ) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RER EATEE BERAT
miENERE BARE BEGARE

(%158) (%258) (%38) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITREMBR
other borrowings - 56,080 - 56,080
As at 31 December 2018 20185 12431 H
Fair value measurement using
ERNTERETAREENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERE  BAUER EATATEER
MG HHRE BWARE BARUE
(B1E) ($2E) (%3E) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TEL
Interest-bearing bank and AT BERTT REM AR
other borrowings = 4969 = 4,969
Loan from a related party B A BN = 1,275 = 1,275
= 6,244 = 6,244
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank balances
and debt investments. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, contract assets and trade and bills

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk,
foreign currency risks, credit risks and liquidity risks. The board of directors reviews

and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates

primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group’s policy is

to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

R

BEREEBRRBER

AEEZIEZCRTARERS IR
BBARBEHRE ZFEMTAZE
ZENRAEEZEEEEEE A&

EEZEEMEREENERR WES
BURFERERER SHEENRE

ZPRNFARENRE &3%@%?
FEENERELBHZE

KﬁléﬂIﬂZEEH % A ) R
b SNERBR  EERBRRREBE SR
@°%$@$T&Hﬁ” R %S R
ZBRU BN T o

FERmEE

ASEEBNTSMNEEHERE RE
REEWTEERBHE - AEENREK
REREEREEERASEEENE
PR

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 4. H#EREEEERECK (&)
(Cont’d)

Interest rate risk (Cont d) =R (&)

TREGEREEMAZRRIENE
ST AR B BR AR A B 1R 2 M R A Rl BE
AEEFNFRENNT CERETEE
RHOTE)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax

(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in in loss

basis points before tax

HEhgm,/ BRBLAIES 1B

(B2)  #h/ O8d)

HK$'000

TEL
2019 20195

Hong Kong dollar ABIT 100 466

Hong Kong dollar AT (100) (466)
2018 20185

Hong Kong dollar BT 100 -

Hong Kong dollar BT (100) -
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks were primarily related to bank
balances mainly denominated in RMB and the United States Dollar (“USD") and
debt investments denominated in the USD. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely

monitoring the movements in the foreign currency rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in RMB and the USD exchange rate (against HK$),
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax (due to changes

in the fair value of monetary assets).

R

PR EREEREREUR (&)

SMNE L B

ALEmEERNERBRERSRERIN
ARBRET ([RTT])FHEZRITA
BREARTTAEZEHRE AR EE
AT EIME PR - LB BE Y B
SNEEXEH AT EINERE o

TRMMER AR T REE T
BRT - R AR B EORB A
B(HRREAEZ AABESD) R
AEEESYARSRETES (18
7O 97 B2 B BB 7 -

Increase/

(decrease) in Increase/

RMB/USD (decrease)

rate in loss

% before tax

ARE/

EnERX BRBLATE R

A/ (T &/ CAD)

HK$'000

% FET
2019 2019%F

If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT EARBRE 5 (15,675)

If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB WETELARSHE (5) 15,675

If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT ETRE 5 (5,873)

If the HK$ strengthens against the USD BT ETHAE (5) 5,873
2018 2018%F

If the HK$ weakens against the RMB WETELARBRZE 5 =

If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT ARERE 5) =

If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT ETRE 5 (4,587)

If the HK$ strengthens against the USD BT ETHAE (5) 4587

TRBELEXERETRAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk
based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information
unless other information is available without undue cost or effort, and yearend

staging classification as at 31 December. For debt investments, the Group also

monitors them by using external ratings. The amounts presented are gross carrying

amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019

PR EREE R EREUR (&)

FERR

AEBEEMAREBRIFNE=TE
TR - BRAKENHEK FTHMA
EXRTEEPETRINELETE
REZ AN AREHERSRRET
FRERE RSB R ZRERIL T
BXRe

RARBRRER FAER

TRINE 273 BREAEBEERE
(FZERBHEN BRIFESHR
BERASRS HAAEGHNEMER

BRI ) EMEEEZERRAGEE
BB R B AR EREBRD I - BLEHK
BmE  AREIMERIMNPFAETE
Z- 2R ReREENEREE-

20195128318

|2-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A
REER FENRAEERE
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
BEI B 2 B3 b7 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FAT TEL TET
Debt investments at FVOCI BAREEFER
HEBTALMEE
Wiz BRRE 91,215 5,459 - - 9,674
Trade receivables* B S as - - - 109,161 109,161
Contract assets* alEE* - - - 89,469 89,469
Financial assets included in STABTFUE
prepayments, other receivables  E At FEIHIA |k
and other assets HEENEREE
— Normal** — g 14,494 - - - 14,494
— Doubtful** — TR - - 28,622 - 28,622
Restricted bank deposits and RBHRITEHAR
cash and bank balances Be R
— Not yet past due -RBH 134,241 - - - 134,24|
239,950 5,459 28,622 198,630 472,661
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont'd)

As at 3| December 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

9 HBEREEEERBK (&)

=ERkR (&)

BRABBRERFAER (&)

720185128318

[2-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1208 A7
EEER FESRPEEER
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
Y e BE3 s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEL TEL TR
Debt investments at FVOCI BAAEEHEER
EEFALMEE
Wit BHRE 66212 11,446 - - 77658
Trade receivables* B ARMHIE* - - - 72230 72030
Bills receivables EYER 9,127 - - - 9,127
Contract assets* ANEE - - - 101,063 101,063
Financial assets included in STABNZE:
prepayments, other receivables  EL At EIFNIA &
and other assets EEENEREE
— Normal** —EE* 46,348 - - - 46,348
— Doubtfuf¥* — TR - - 5010 - 5010
Restricted bank deposits and RRBIBRTEAAR
cash and bank balances Re RFTEH
—Not yet past due vl 121,772 - - - 121,772
243459 1,446 5010 173293 433,208
& For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the simplified ¥ HAKEERABICRERENE S

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in

notes 20 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.

*k The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables

and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there

is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”,

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising

from trade receivables and contract assets are disclosed in notes 20 and 19 to the

financial statements.

WHIBRENEE REBEEER
BRER D BRI HHRERM 2019
HEo

ATAEMFR - Bt RS R E i
BEMNEREESAAY AYEE
MBTRZEERMEES MREREKE

RIEFR|-BR eREENERE
EWER 7R

AEERZSRWZBENANEEES
MEERBRMOMNE—TEEE  ©®
B SRR I 520 19M B2 -

LRRE X EEEEERAT
—B-NEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 0.

(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity

planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and

financial assets (e.g, trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility through bank and other borrowings and loan from a related party.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

PR EREE R EREUR (&)

REE S

ASERABERADEFNITAERE
ERRER ZITAREREEHTA
FeRBE (E5REFTERERS
BINMIHE  bE L EEL TR
Renge

ALER B RRERIRTREAMETA
&%%E%%M%Hﬂé%%%ﬁﬂm
AR T

TRE|FTAEEERABERREHR
RAFRNE RN ENZIBBR S
#r

2019
On demand
or within | year Over | year Total
BRERSR
R—FR —FuE #st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERr TERx TER
Trade and bills payables EHRNRIBRENFIE 107,496 - 107,496
Financial liabilities included in AT AR A 1 3R K
other payables and accruals B EANSRERE 33,824 - 33,824
Interest-bearing bank and STRERITREMER
other borrowings 35,548 23,864 59,412
Lease liabilities HERE 11,223 21,294 32,517
188,091 45,158 233,249
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 40.

R

ISR EE B EREGR (&)

(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) RBESRER (&)
2018
On demand
or within | year Over | year Total
RBRK
R—FR —FNUE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT
Trade and bills payables HHRNFTBRENRER 65452 - 65,452
Financial liabilities included in AT AR FE A FRIR K
other payables and accruals EERNEREE 6,684 = 6,684
Interest-bearing bank and SHRRITREMER
other borrowings 4944 - 4944
Loan from a related party AE A ER 1228 = 1,228
78,308 — 78,308
Capital management EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios

in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of

changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend

payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The

Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes

were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 3| December 2019 and 3| December 2018.

AEEEAEE 2 T BARAERASE
ERERe B RREEAL XM
N AREEBREF RBRRER
RAEE.

>
i
i)

BREHBREE WREBEER
HHEENRREEEBELAR -
AEEREAERRRIRE ZRE [
REFREE AR EITHRN - AR
HEERERE AEEBAETEMI
HEARRTE - NEZE2019F 128318 K
018F12A3IBLEFELEREEER
HAR BERSBRIELE

D
S

SH

LREBEXCEXERERA A
—B-NFEFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

40.

41.

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 40 B¥EREEBEEREE ()
(Cont’d)
Capital management (Cont d) EXEE (HF)
The Group monitors capital using the ratio of total liabilities to total assets. The AEEFERAGBRIAREE L RE
ratios of total liabilities to total assets as at the end of the reporting periods were as TER -RBREMK BEBRNEE
follows: EZHEMT
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Total liabilties BRE 268,469 128615
Total assets mEE 710,140 642,789
Ratio H® 38% 20%
EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 4. HERRER
The unexpected outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19") has certain impacts on ENEBERNHEEMRES
the business operation of the Group. The magnitude of the impacts depends on the (TCOVID-19] ) ¥ 7N 5 B 2 75 48 & 3
situation of the epidemic preventive measures, the duration of the epidemic and the —ERE FERBIURRIEREEN
implementation of regulatory policies. Management of the Group is committed to BN BERENRRENREEBR
closely monitor the development of the COVID-19, proactively assess its impacts RERN ASEERERNEESE
to the business operation of the Group and take necessary action to mitigate the COVID-198 & & - R E HH A KR
business risk arising from the COVID-9. At the date of approval of these financial EBRENTEWRDMY E5E 5 E
statements, the assessment is still in progress. COVID-197%5 R H) 15 [ Bz o 1 5% S B
BB RS ARG IDEET
q:‘ o
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS R LBEF

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Group adopted
HKFRS 16 on | January 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative amounts in the financial statements were not restated
and continued to be reported under the requirements of the previous standard,

HKAS 17, and related interpretations.
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43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 43.

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

R

EATZHBRRE
ARRRBEHR L HERREEH
mF:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER NG 6 7
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR 2K E 3,588 3,588
Debt investments at fair value through BARBEAEEEEHTA
other comprehensive income Hit 2 HR R EBRE 67,576 -
Deferred tax assets EIERIBE E 622 -
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 71,792 3,595
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEU BT B A R R 314,482 454415
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets FARTFRIE  EoAth e W 5RE J Ho At B 170 2993
Debt investments at fair value through BAREBENEEEZEHA
other comprehensive income Hih 2 ERRNEBRE 29,098 =
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITE 21,614 13,345
Total current assets mEEERAE 365,364 470,753
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Due to subsidiaries AR =PNGIE R 17,565 13,576
Other payables and accruals HAit R RIE R ERTE R 2,240 3416
Current income tax BVER P15 7 888 -
Total current liabilities mEBEER 20,693 16,992
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 344,671 453761
Net assets EERE 416,463 457356
EQUITY B
Share capital R 6,510 6,532
Reserves (note 31) s (PMEE31) 409,953 450,824
Total equity MR 416,463 457,356
TRBEEMLEXEEBMERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

43.

44,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

Share-based

B ARFRZBBRRE (&)

DEE

ARRIFEBENT

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
through other

Share payment  comprehensive Accumulated
premium reserve income losses Total
RAREE
STEEHEH
FAEMRE
LRGHE KEZER
HiE ey BERR
R4 (E R A BERE RitEBR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL TET TET
Balances at | January 2018 20185 | A | BRI 48R 662,445 18,694 = (200,138) 481,001
Total comprehensive loss FNEA
for the year EEEE - - = (41,783) (41783)
Share options exercised BT{ERE R E 11,827 (4512) - - 7313
Equity-settled share-based VAR 25 45 B B AR (D 75
payment arrangements e R - 4291 - - 4291
Balance at 3| December 2018 720185 12431 H &
and | January 2019 2019 | B I B &84 674,272 18473 — (241921) 450,824
Total comprehensive loss FAZHEBELTE
for the year — — (163) (40,729) (40,892)
Share options exercised BT ERE 4,193 (1,658) = = 2535
Equity-settled share-based NEREENURD A
payment arrangements EW e R = 765 = = 765
Shares repurchased REEE (3279) = = = (3279)
Balance at 31 December 2019 720194 12 431 B W4 &4 675,186 17,580 (163) (282,650) 409,953

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 30 March 2020.
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